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CHAIR WHITE: Good morning. This Budget and Finance Committee meeting will come to
order. And, as we all know, we need to turn off our cell phones, put them on vibrate.
And, first of all, I'd like to note that Vice-Chair Riki Hokama is excused. Don Guzman
is excused; he may be joining us later, but he wasn't feeling too well yesterday. And, this
morning, we have Chair Gladys Baisa.
COUNCILMEMBER BAlSA: Good morning, Chair.
CHAIR WHITE: Good morning. And Vice-Chair Bob Carroll.
COUNCILMEMBER CARROLL: Good morning, Chair.
CHAIR WHITE: Aloha. And we have Member Stacy Crivello.
COUNCILMEMBER CRIVELLO: Good morning, Chair.
CHAIR WHITE: Good morning. Elle Cochran.
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COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Aloha, good morning, Chair.
CHAIR WHITE: Aloha. And Don Couch.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Good morning, Chair.
CHAIR WHITE: Good morning. And Mike Victorino.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Good morning. Mr. Chair.
CHAIR WHITE: Good morning. And joining us for the first time in Finance Committee in a
long time, our Committee Secretary, Yvette Bouthillier.
MS. BOUTHILLIER: Good morning.
CHAIR WHITE:
Good morning and welcome back.
Michele Yoshimura.

And Legislative Analyst,

MS. YOSHIMURA: Good morning.
CHAIR WHITE: Good morning. And we also have our trusty Corporation Counsel joining us:
along with our Budget Director, Sandy Baz; and Lance Hiromoto from our Department of
Personnel Services. So welcome to the three of you. And we will be opening up for
public testimony and we'll start with our first testifier in the Chambers and then we'll
take three or four from the Chambers and then go to our district offices. So our first
testifier this morning is William Tavares, testifying on BF-74.

... BEGIN PUBLIC TESTIMONY...

MR. TAVARES: I am William D. Tavares; Cochairnmn of COMET, the Committee for More
Equitable Taxation; just turned 92 on November 25th. The power to tax is not, and never
has been, the power to destroy. COMET has never swayed from its ultimate objective,
which is the eventual replacement of the present immoral; unjust; yes, cruel property tax
system with a fair, acquisition-based assessment system. For decades, homeowners have
been subjected to a property tax system that instills apprehension and fear on an annual
basis. Flippers, the new Vikings who continue to pillage our shores, they buy, then
quickly sell choice property for huge profits and cause property taxes to double, in some
cases, in two to three years. It is repugnant to me and to others to know this, that some
unscrupulous realtors are still offering classes on how to be effective in flipping right
here on this island. COMET believes that the only course of action that this Council
should take is to repeal, outright repeal, the present gutted property tax credit and revert
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to the original tax credit. It should then commence a focused study of the present
property tax system and replace it very soon with an acquisition-based system as
described by COMET for the past many decades. Do you, Council members, realize how
much anguish the new tax credit ordinance has already caused? According to the latest
figures, last Friday. only 271 applications for the tax credit have been received. And the
information we have is that 132 have qualified for that credit. Are you aware of how
many people who qualified last year are extremely distraught by the revised tax credit? If
instructions and a thorough explanation of the revised tax credit had been transmitted to
these people months ago, the shock might not have been so great. Do you, Council
members, realize that unless you repeal this gutted tax credit and then abandon the
present property tax system for a just and morally defensible acquisition-based
assessment system -MS. YOSFIIMURA: Three minutes.
MR. TAVARES: --you, too, will feel the same disapproval or contempt that the public now
feels about Congress and our President? COMET has waited for a quarter of a century
for some positive action from this Council but to no avail. Instead we see the brutal
gutting of this tax credit. Is this how you serve your constituents? Have you no
conscience? COMET has worked tirelessly for 25 years to attain its goals and will
continue to do so until we see some real changes. I notice I don't have much time left,
but this letter was just given tome last night from Marie Palmer. I'll just read a couple of
paragraphs. Thank you, Mr. William Tavares and Mr. John Blurner-Buell, for writing the
letter about the circuit breaker law and for fighting for us, old timers, still living in our
house that we bought 50-plus years ago. With these "new improved" changes to the
original law, without assistance of a kind friend, I would be unable to figure it out
without paying some professional a fee to help me. This "improved" version to make the
cheaters pay is hurting a lot of us honest people in its wake. I am sure there are hundreds
of us seniors on Maui in my predicament. Thank again, Mr. Tavares and
Mr. Blumer-Buell; thank you, Mayor Arakawa, for voting against these 'new improved",
hurtful changes; signed, Marie C. Palmer. Thank you very much. I completed my talk.
CHAIR WHITE: Thank you, Mr. Tavares. Members, questions for the testifier? Seeing none,
thank you very much.
MR. TAVARES: Thank you.
CHAIR WHITE: Our next testifier will be John Blumer-Buell, testifying on BF-74.
MR. BLUMER-BUELL: Good morning, Chair White -CHAIR WHITE: Good morning.
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MR. BLUMER-BUELL: --and Committee Members. I'm John Blumer-Buell from Flana, and
I'm Co-Chair of COMET. We submitted four pages in writing that should be in your
files that is important information. If you hadn't read it, it has the latest statistics. And,
however, yesterday Bill and I wrote a new piece of testimony for today based on The
Maui News article. Aloha, Chair White and Committee Members. Yesterday's Maui
News stated Chairman White has offered up some amendments to the circuit breaker
property tax credit in an effort to bide time to collect more information to help fine tune
changes made earlier this year that have drawn criticism. At the same time this
Committee is biding time and fine tuning changes, COMET has been denied relevant
information we requested in our October 25, 2013 letter. In effect, Chairman White and
this Committee are obstructing our efforts to help solve the problems for deserving
beneficiaries in Maui County. If COMET continues to be denied information, we intend
to acquire the information through the Freedom of Information Act. At the same time
Chair White is accusing the Administration of withholding information, he is withholding
information from COMET. The Maui News stated, White said, Friday, that the
amendments proposed are intended to provide time for the Council to collect more
information in an effort to fine tune changes which were approved by the Council in May
after overriding a veto by Mayor Alan Arakawa. Chairman White and this Committee
should have taken the time to fully understand what you were doing before you gutted the
circuit breaker legislation. Now, Chairman White apparently understands you need more
time. The Maui News stated, the provision to allow for an appeal under any
circumstances was offered to put applicants in a holding pattern so that Council can
obtain more current information and go through the law early next year to make whatever
changes we feel are appropriate, White said. COMET does not think this Committee
understands the stress the holding pattern is putting on hundreds of our valued kupuna
and their families. Stress is one of the worst health conditions for any human. It causes
illness and can cause death.
MS. YOSHIMURA: Three minutes.
5th the Committee for More Equitable Taxation
MR. BLUMER-BUELL: On November
requested the Maui County Council repeal the current circuit breaker legislation and
legislatively reinstate the previous law by no later than mid-December. As of today,
COMET sees no reason to change its requests or position. COMET suggests enactment
of completely new legislation by October 2014 with more rational and reasonable
qualifying standards. Revised standards should be derived from scientifically compiled
information, consideration of property tax impacts upon renters, consideration of an
acquisition-based assessment system, consideration of fairness and legality of property
taxes upon kanaka maoli and consideration of establishing a review board with authority
to review the appeals and deny undeserving applicants. The precautionary principle of do
no harm should be at the heart of every circuit breaker consideration and decision. And
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it's signed, sincerely yours, William D. Tavares and John Blumer-Buell, Co-Chairs of
COMET. Thank you.
CHAIR WHITE: Thank you, Mr. Blumer-Buell. Members, questions for the testifier? Seeing
none, thank you very much.
MR. BLUMER-BUELL: You're welcome.
CHAIR WHITE: Our next testifier is Leni Hokoana English.
MS. HOKOANA ENGLISH: Aloha, Chair, County Council members. Mahalo for allowing us
to be here. My name is Leni Hokoana English. I am a sixth-generation descendent of the
ama that I am here speaking about. My aunties, Joy Bissen and Verna Uu, are also here.
They are the two kupuna who currently reside on the property that has been in our family
for seven generations. In the many years that we have been on this property, it has
primarily served the purpose of providing housing for our elderly. I'm trying to be very
delicate, because I think where I wanna speak from is at a very sensitive place. And I
wanna apologize, 'cause I might get very sensitive. The ama that I speak about is an ama
that feeds us; it comes with a spirit that leads us; it's a place that our family, for many
generations, have gathered without notice. Our family gathers there four times a year,
automatic. It is a place where we plan, it is a place where important decisions are made,
and it has become ama that we continuously need to fight to keep. I, in particular, feel
like I was charged by my grandparents to be a spokesperson to do what we can to save it.
Just last year, just this year, we went through a process of being noticed with multiple
short-term rental housing permit applicants who clearly, to us, confirm the many people
who are speculative investors who drive us, kamaaina, seven generations strong. In our
culture, when you can be at one place for that long, it affirms that we need to be there
forever, and it requires us to repeatedly take places like this to make our big points
known to those of you who are in a position of making decisions. I respect -MS. YOSHIMTJRA: Three minutes.
MS. HOKOANA ENGLISH: --oh, okay. So my two aunties. . .1 don't know if the Chair will
allow this, because they're also signed up. I'm not sure if you're gonna allow me to
speak on their behalf.
CHAIR WHITE: No, we...
MS. HOKOANA ENGLISH: Okay.
CHAIR WHITE: Each person can testify once. You can...
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MS. HOKOANA ENGLISH: Well, because they'll just.. .we don't wanna have them start
the... so you want them to finish what I'm gonna say?
CHAIR WHITE: Well, if you still have time, I'll be happy to have you...
MS. HOKOANA ENGLISH: Okay, I'll keep going -CHAIR WHITE: Yeah.
MS. HOKOANA ENGLISH: --because.. .alright. So I respect that this is very important, the
matter before. The County Council is important. I believe that there may be.. .oh, it's
our experience, just by the short-term.. .1 mean we talking.. .we had two adjoining people
to our property who had applied for short-term rental permits that because we adjoined
both of them, it would've caused for it to come before the Planning Commission. But
that in itself tells me and affirms that there are many speculative investors who are
coming to drive people like us out of our ama. And so I respect this work that needs to
be done. I believe that there's great purpose in this whole bill being moved forward. I
also believe that it was not intended for people like us, families like us. We did put in our
application and we were denied. Our denial came as a result of there being an
interruption of our homeownership -MS. YOSHIMURA: Five minutes.
MS. HOKOANA ENGLISH: --exemption. And that homeowner exemption came as a result of
our interest and our guidance by an attorney, the late Thomas Bodden, who directed us to
turn the title of the property into an LLC. We do not earn any kind of income, we file
taxes, we pay to file those taxes. Our aunties are on incredible fixed incomes, they
cannot afford the taxes. So the way the circuit breaker currently is being read, we were
denied by the interruption by one year, cause there's a five-year period.
CHAIR WHITE: I'm gonna have to ask you to make a concluding...
MS. HOKOANA ENGLISH: Okay. Well, I would like to say, you know, COMET has done a
great job in pushing this through for people like us, and I would like to ask that there be
great consideration for whatever the amendments to be whether it be in a form of an
appeal process, which might be very vague, that there be consideration to not have this
bill intended to affect other people to affect those that I believe, I think you all believe,
was not intended to affect.
CHAIR WHITE: Thank you. Members, questions for the testifier? I have a question for you. It
sounds as though the denial was based on the five-year. . . you had to have homeowners
exemption in place for five years.
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MS. HOKOANA ENGLISH: Correct.
CHAIR WHITE: Is your homeowners exemption in place now?
MS. HOKOANA ENGLISH: Yes.
CHAIR WHITE: Okay. So just so we know what might help you. The other question that I had
was--and I don't know whether this is legal, we'll have to discuss this with Corp.
Counsel--but one of the ideas that was floated was, if we were to put a length of
ownership, since it's been in your family for many. many -MS. HOKOANA ENGLISH: Generations.
CHAIR WHITE: --generations -MS. HOKOANA ENGLISH: 1800s.
CHAIR WHITE: --yeah--if we were to put a qualifier that allowed for anyone to be exempt if
they had had the land in the family for 50 or 60 or 70 or 80 or 90 years, it sounds like that
would help in your situation.
MS. HOKOANA ENGLISH: Where we got messed up is in estate planning. We were. . . so that
there would not be a loss of title, we were advised to either put it.. . well, we wasn't
advised to put it in a trust -CHAIR WHITE: Uh-huh.
MS. HOKOANA ENGLISH: --but we were advised to have the title be held in an LLC -CHAIR WHITE: Yeah.
MS. HOKOANA ENGLISH: --so that it remained. The other issue, for us, may be related to the
circuit breaker is that although there will only be two people ever living on the property,
there are five title holders -CHAIR WHITE: Uh-huh.
MS. HOKOANA ENGLISH: --who have property living elsewhere. So I understand that that is
not the basis so far that we were denied the circuit breaker, it was on the interruption
of .. but we had it all the years prior.
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CHAIR WHITE: Right. Okay, thank you. And I appreciate your clarifying that for us. Our
next testifier is Thomas Croly.
MR. CROLY: Aloha, Chair; aloha, Committee Members. I was the sole testifier when this
came to this Committee back in February. And then I was surprised that there were no
testifiers, none whatsoever, when this came to two readings at Council. And then when
this came.. .then when the Mayor vetoed it, it came to a vote on veto, there was, again, no
testifiers; but, now, here we are. And the unintended consequences were what we were
all concerned about and I guess that's what we're trying to address right now. I
remember when we discussed it, Councilmember Baisa said, I hate this name, circuit
breaker. Sounds like something that you put in your house. Why does it make sense?
But I want to explain why it's called, the circuit breaker. The reason it's called, the
circuit breaker is, in your house, you have this circuit breaker in the garage; and the
reason that's there is to prevent a catastrophe. A catastrophe would be when one of your
electrical lines gets overloaded and it gets overheated and it causes your house to burn
down; that's what the circuit breaker's there to do, it's to prevent the catastrophe of your
house being burned down. With respect to this law, what it's supposed to do is, it's
supposed to make sure that no one will be taxed out of their home. Now, the catastrophe
that we're talking about is someone not having the money to pay their taxes and,
therefore, losing the home that they live in. No one wants that to happen, I know that.
No one in this room wants that to happen, nobody here has ever intended that. But what I
wanna make clear is, the circuit breaker was not intended to be simply a way for our
seniors to pay lower taxes. It wasn't intended for that. It was intended that if the tax
burden is going to get so high that it might cause you to lose your home, then this thing
would kick in and save you, okay. A lot of the letters that I saw to the newspaper were
not at all like that. They were people with very good means saying, hey, you're asking
me to pay more taxes than I paid before and I don't think that's right. Well, I don't feel
for that guy. The last testifier, they wrote to the newspaper and I looked up their
situation; that was wrong. And what I encouraged you to do at that time, when I gave
testimony back in February and I'm going to reiterate again, is we should give the
Finance Director some discretion on what the qualifications are going to be to meet the
circuit breaker. When we make those requirements hard, they must submit this or they
will be denied, then you're going to run into situations like the last one where it was a
good intent. We want to have homeowners being the only ones who get this and it
shouldn't be someone who bought a property last year being able to apply for the circuit
breaker the very next year. So we put in this provision that says, you have to have been
claimed a homeowner and gotten the homeowner for the last five years. But here's a
situation where this person has been a homeowner for generations, and they should
have. . .that should not be a reason for them to deny.
MS. YOSHIMURA: Three minutes.
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MR. CROLY: And I would like for the Director to have some discretion, and that we give him
that discretion. Or if you want that discretion to take place in a public forum, then give it
to the Appeals Board; let the Appeals Board have that discretion to grant these things. I
wanna just conclude with, the circuit breaker is kind of a form of welfare, it's like food
stamps, it's like other things that we have to make sure that those who are at the bottom
are taken care of; so those who are at the top should have no way of taking advantage of
this. Unfortunately, in order to prevent those at the top, we have to put some rules into
this, some real meat that makes it difficult to get through. And I feel for every single
person who's down there at the bottom and doesn't know how to comply with these rules
and maybe get some advice from an accountant--as these guys did--or a lawyer who says,
do this, and it was bad advice and then it causes them problems. So, please, let's make
sure that we administrate this with compassion for the people that it was intended to help.
Thank you.
CHAIR WHITE: Thank you, Mr. Croly. Members, questions for the testifier? Seeing none,
thank you very much. And we'll now go to our office in Hana. Dawn, do you have any
testifiers?
MS. LONO: Good morning, Chair. This is Dawn Lono in Hana, and I have no one waiting to
testify.
CHAIR WHITE: Thank you, Dawn. And, Denise on Lanai, do you have any testifiers?
MS. FERNANDEZ: Good morning, Chair. This is Denise Fernandez on Lanai, and there is no
one waiting to testify.
CHAIR WHITE: Thank you, Denise. Ella, do you have any testifiers on Molokai?
MS. ALCON: Good morning, Chair. This is Ella Alcon on Molokai, and there is no one here
waiting to testify.
CHAIR WHITE: Thank you, ladies. Our next testifier in the Chambers is Bruce Erfer,
testifying on Item No. 74.
MR. ERFER: Good morning, Council. Initially, I will be testifying for my position as Chair of
the Property Tax Board of Review. And I have two issues. One being, we are the Real
Property Tax Board of Review, but we never review any legislation or proposed
legislation, and I strongly urge you to use us. We are five independent, fairly intelligent
people who can aid you by understanding some of the unintended consequences, because
these are the people who appeal to us for their taxes. So I urge you to use us, send us
draft legislation so we can respond. And, number two, you have added the circuit breaker
tax credit to the reasons for appeal. I'm really at a loss to what you expect to get from
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that. I can't really say anymore. Our hands are tied by the same County Codes that the
Department of Finance is. If somebody is denied based on the fact that their income's
too high, they didn't have a homeowner exemption, we have no way of giving them
circuit breaker. Please understand that about 95 to 98 percent of all items that come in
front of that board are denied because the person didn't do something or didn't qualify.
It's that straightforward. I would now like to testify for myself not for the Board, a few
things. And I'm more of an analyst and a technician, but I understand fairness and equity
and have for all the years I've been trying to convince you to do things. I just wanna be
very specific on a few items. The five-consecutive-tax-year issue, that precludes
somebody from moving. If somebody moves to a different house, they can't get the
circuit breaker for five years. So you've locked them into a property for whatever reason.
Number two--and I've said this forever--I don't understand why you utilize AG!,
adjusted gross income, for the circuit breaker and not total income. The other part of the
income above the AG! is income that is not taxed. It's tax-free interest, tax-free
dividends, tax-free pension funds, it is income to people that is worth more than the
taxable income and yet it's not included; and I don't understand that. Why don't we
include all income. Regarding the exceeding $100,000...
MS. YOSHIMURA: Three minutes.
MR. ERFER: Can I continue?
CHAIR WHITE: Yeah, keep going.
MR. ERFER: Okay. On the $100,000, first of all, I believe it should be on a sliding scale. In
other words, why should the person who makes $100,001 be excluded from this? It
needs to be 90 percent, at 80,000... 80 percent and it's, as the Federal Government does
it, it has to be a sliding scale, it can't just end at a dollar. The same thing with a $400,000
home value, if somebody's home is valued another $10, do we exclude them? It may
cost them thousands of dollars. So I think we need sliding scales. Similarly, on the
$100,000, which is a fairly high number, I would prefer to see something like where we
allow a 2 percent. . .where we charge 2 percent on the first 50,000 and maybe 3 percent on
the second 50,000. In other words, the higher the income, you pay a little more. And
finally, which has nothing to do with this, we continue to give homeowner exemptions to
people with multimillion-dollar homes. I don't understand why we can't limit the
exemption to the first million-and-a-half dollars or the first million dollars and let the
County coffers increase by those amounts. I mean why do we not limit the homeowner
exemption to the first X-dollar value? I don't understand. We're giving money away to
the rich. That's it, thank you.
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CHAIR WHITE: Thank you. Members, any questions for the testifier? Seeing none, thank you
very much, Mr. Erfer, very good points. And our next testifier is Dave DeLeon, also
testifying on Item 74.
MR. DeLEON: Good morning. I'm Dave DeLeon speaking on behalf of the Realtors
Association of Maui on Item BF-.74. The Realtors Association of Maui would like to
extend its appreciation to the Council for its efforts to close the gaps in the County's
circuit breaker law that allowed unintended beneficiaries to take advantage of the law.
We're also thankful that this Committee is now making this attempt to refine the law to
assure that those who truly need the tax relief can get it. RAM believes that the Council,
in its zeal to stop abuses of the current program.. . or the previous program, overcooked it.
The new provisions that limited adjusted gross income and the qualified structure value
were probably strong enough to eliminate most of the abuse that was going on. The
adjustments beyond that point, however, seemed to have overly narrowed the focus of the
law causing unnecessary collateral damage. The provision that this qualifies applicants
because they own an interest in an additional property strikes us as a non sequitur. It
does not logically follow that because you own additional property that you're so wealthy
that you should not qualify for a tax relief. Many of our kamaaina residents own an
interest in kuleana properties that are an addition to their residences. Some family legacy
properties cannot simply be disposed of. Some chose to invest in rental property instead
of a 401 (k) and may be the family's main source of income. The circuit breaker does not
penalize the family that invested in stocks in the same manner. Would you tell a family
that they have to eliminate their stock portfolio before they can qualify for tax relief?
That essentially is what the circuit breaker law now says to landowning families. It
should be noted that the wealthy can hide their landownership and corporate holdings.
Those less well off, those who the circuit breaker is meant to serve, usually do not have
the resources to take that legal option. The current circuit-breaker law disallows anyone
on title from owning an interest in another property. So the son and daughter owns their
own home, then mom and dad no longer qualify for the circuit breaker; that
disqualification is property ownership based independent of whether the family has
additional financial resources or not. This limitation on additional family title holders
appears to be unnecessarily restrictive. RAM firmly believes the prohibition on
additional property ownership is misguided.
MS. YOSHIMURA: Three minutes.
MR. DeLEON: It makes the law tighter than it needs to be to fulfill its mission and
unnecessarily discriminates against a certain class of property owners. RAM respectfully
requests that the Council remove 3.48.810C from the County Code. Mahalo. Mr. Chair,
I'd also like to comment on your proposal for the $10,000 limitation on property
ownership that that was on the table?
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CHAIR WHITE: ... (Inaudible)...
MR. DeLEON: Generally speaking, there are very few properties that have qualified for that,
that'd usually be a remnant property, would be almost valueless. And it might serve a
couple families; but, in general, it's not really hitting the nut that needs to be handled.
Thank you.
CHAIR WHITE: Thank you. Members, questions for the testifier? Seeing none...
MR. DeLEON: Mahalo.
CHAIR WHITE: Yeah, the $10,000 limit was to deal with the issue of roadway lots and
remnants and things that were...
MR. DeLEON: Yeah, that's exactly what it would do, yeah.
CHAIR WHITE: Yeah.
MR. DeLEON: It would be a general property, yeah.
CHAIR WHITE: Correct.
MR. DeLEON: Great. Thank you.
CHAIR WHITE: Thank you. Our next testifier is Dale Bonar, testifying on BF-30.
MR. BONAR: Chair White, Members of the Committee, you've heard me testify before on the
Launiupoko purchase, and so I won't repeat all that except to point out that the focus on
this has come from many years work by the whole community, you know, both west,
central Maui, governments, everyone, on the importance.. .that whole stretch from the
Pali to Puamana. I, as you know, strongly support the acquisition of the lands. In fact, I
wish we could get more than are just being addressed today. Unfortunately, the appraisal
issue has clouded everything. And the worst part of it, to my mind, is that appraisals do
one very specific thing, and that's look at best development values of property and that's
it. And when an appraisal looks at the value of land for other things which include things
like park lands, cultural lands, scenic spaces, view planes, open spaces, ball fields, those
are given almost no value at all. I had the head of one of the biggest appraisal firms in
Honolulu call and say, Dale, how do we value cultural lands? And I said, Karen, that's
usually what I call you for, but you don't. What it is is, well, what would it cost if you
had to build something around the sacred heiau or these deeply significant cultural lands?
There are not values put on those kind of things. William Seward, in 1867, was the
Secretary of State responsible for buying Alaska. He got lambasted for paying
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$72.2 million to Russia for buying Alaska. Seward's Folly that many of us remember
from history. Theodore Roosevelt got lambasted when he set aside all this beautiful land
for Yellowstone. These are the things that, nowadays, we look back on and say, thank
God for farsightedness; and that's what the Council needs to be doing is considering
farsightedness here. That said, I do not support condemnation. I find condemnation to be
the type of thing that alienates people from the government, it alienates landowners from
the government. In fact, many land trusts are the ones that landowners will come to, to
talk because they don't trust the government, they don't feel the government's giving
them a fair shake. And, with a land trust, at least they can work for a win-win. I
personally believe that the agreement that was reached between the landowners and the
Mayor does represent fair value. You know, this is a cultural icon, a scenic icon, for
Maui is having this area protected. You know, its value to our kids, our grandkids, our
great grandkids, the future, to both residents and tourists in Maui, is enormous here. You
know, particularly the West Side, it's that whole feeling of West Maui there. I have also
seen numerous situations where condemnation ends up resulting in a greater cost -MS. YOSHIMURA: Three minutes.
MR. BONAR: --not only in terms of the money that's spent, but in the time that it takes staff,
the time it takes taking up Council time, lawyer fees in particular that those are the kind
of things that may very well cost more in the long run. The worst, of course, is losing it.
And hopefully you can find the win-win with the landowners and recognize that the
appraisal--which, since it's just been sitting at the table, I haven't had time to look at, to
see what it covered, yet--I do not think should be the basis for saying, yes, this is only
what we will pay. I think you have to look at the value of this iconic land to the County
of Maui. It is indeed priceless. Thank you.
CHAIR WHITE: Thank you. Members, questions for the testifier? Seeing none, thank you
very much. Our next testifier is Artemio Baxa, testifying on Item No. 74.
MR. BAXA: Honorable Chair, Honorable Members of the Committee, I speak here. . .my name
is Artemio C. Baxa. I speak here as a private individual. I would like to thank the
Committee for this hearing; it is very important. Deep in my heart I know that it is not
the intent of the Chair nor the Members of the Committee to hurt the people that are
really affected by this legislation. From the founding of America, the home has been the
backdrop, the very foundation of our existence as a great people. Owning a home,
however humble that may be, is one of the very things that sustain us as a great nation
and as a great people. Of course, in the distribution in the collection of taxes, it is only
natural and expected that the wealthy, those who can really afford, should pay a higher
burden of that taxes, because it is a part of every American to be able to help those who
are unable to help them. And it is not the intent of those below to be dependent upon
them, but at least our government should see to it that they express compassion to answer
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the needs of those who really need it. As I was outside, I did not intend to testify; but
there was a lady, she's here right now, she mentioned to me--I don't know how she
knows me--but she said, are you going up there to testify? And I said, I'm not sure
ma'am. Why? I said. You know, I am an old woman now, same with my husband.
MS. YOSHIMIJRA: Three minutes.
MR. BAXA: Mr. Chair, could be waived?
CHAIR WHITE: Please proceed.
MR. BAXA: I am living in a home, an ancestral home, me and my husband. Originally, we
qualified for the circuit breaker, but now we had not been qualified. And I said, why is
that so? And she said, we happen to own another ancestral heritage, a piece of land that
has a little home. And because we do not have any source of income to maintain our
home now, we rent that in order to be able to pay our home; and because of that, we have
not qualified now. Mr. Chair, again, I go back to my theme, the home is so important to
us. It is the heart and soul of our existence as human beings. If having the small parcel
of land that has a small house to be rented in order for me to sustain the home that I'm
living now, and if I do not have that, a small rental there, I'll not be able to sustain that
home. To me, the government should have compassion to see to it that the equity here in
the application of the law should be considered. Now, I don't want to be personal, but let
me give you. Mr. Chair, an example. I used to qualify for the circuit breaker; but,
because I am a government employee, there was a little raise in the amount that I get.
Now, because my adjusted gross income had only a little bit exceeded that amount, I am
not now qualified. But, Mr. Chair, you know what happens? From what I read in the
paper is that, because I'm not now qualified, I will be paying twice as much for my home
as I did before. And so what happened to my little increase in pay, it was completely
submerged; and, also, it took my money out because I have to pay more for this. So I
should not have had the raise at all in order to qualify for that. The second thing,
Mr. Chair, is this -CHAIR WHITE: I'm gonna have to ask you to...
MR. BAXA: --more than 25 years ago -CHAIR WHITE: Uh-huh?
MR. BAXA: --me and my wife built a home. We have not repaired that home; and yet, through
the years, the escalation in the value of the building even increased so much so that it is
now a little bit about 400,000. Mr. Chair, I would have sold that home long time ago, but
this home was built by my wife who had died some time ago. I do not want to lose that
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home simply because I want to honor the memory of my wife who sustained me in this
life. No matter what, I may go in debt, but I'm not going to sell that home. And I hope
that this Committee, as I said, do not intend to hurt people. I am going back to my
proposition that the home is the very soul and heart of America. Let us have compassion
for those who cannot afford to sustain their home. Let me make a difference. Let us
make a difference.
CHAIR WHITE: I'm gonna have to ask you to -MR. BAXA: A true home -CHAIR WHITE: --finish up.
MR. BAXA: --is one that is a home, it's not an income property. If that home where you live is
being rented out, as some people do all over the place, and I think that is not being
considered. That is where you should go, catch the cheaters who are claiming circuit
breakers when, in fact, they're renting a good portion of their home to get more money.
Thank you, Mr. Chair.
CHAIR WHITE: Thank you, Mr. Baxa. Members, any questions for the testifier? Seeing none,
thank you, Mr. Baxa. Our next testifier is Michael Trotto, testifying on BF-70.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Seventy? Seventy-four?
CHAIR WHITE: Oh, 74.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Yeah.
CHAIR WHITE: Sorry.
MR. TROTTO: Good morning, Chairman White, Members of the Budget and Finance
Committee. I'm gonna abandon my testimony that I had prepared last night. In 1988, I
came here to testify on the circuit breaker, and one of the things that we talked about was
the way the property tax system was working. Basically, it was the 800-pound gorilla in
the room. Now, 2013, the 800-pound gorilla is still in the room, folks; a little older, a
little grayer, but still ferocious, still packs the wallop. As long as the Property Tax
Department looks at properties based on market and reassesses others based on what a
neighbor sold their house for. . . drive down our streets, see what has happened to some of
these homes in certain areas along Front Street, 1-lalama Street, Keawekapu: houses that
were there for 60-70 years, now, surrounded by mansions. And the Property Tax
Department says, well, your property's worth this now; that's what was true back in
1988, that's why we came here and that's why we said, we needed relief. People were
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being taxed out of their homes; that's the basic, that's the basis of why we came. It's still
true. So what has happened with this circuit breaker ordinance that we put in, you know,
it's like making bread, folks. One of the tenets of making bread is you don't overwork
the dough; I think that's what you guys done here. You've put so much in there to try
to.. .the end product is not what you want. We've heard people testify today. People that
have other properties that were in their families for generations, they're entrusted with
those properties to maintain 'ern; that shouldn't eliminate them from the circuit breaker
that they have on their residence. People that have other properties that are renting, that
may be their sole income. You don't do that. You don't say, okay, you can't have it
now. You qualified last year, but you don't qualify this year. People who move, well,
you don't have the... you didn't have homeowners exemption for five-plus years because
you've moved to a different property. So this is what I'm saying, we've put so much in
to try to solve a problem we thought we had, or we have with people who are gaming the
system; that, now, this is what you heard today, this is the results.
MS. YOSHIMURA: Three minutes.
MR. TROTTO: So I don't know if this is the Council that's going to tackle the 800-pound
gorilla. I would hope so or at least try. I know it's daunting, but some Council is going
to have to, whether this Council or the one next or the one after that; but, eventually,
that's gonna have to happen. Because that's the reason why we even have a circuit
breaker ordinance, and we need to go after the problem. Anyway, I thank you for taking
this up again. And I hope we can get to where we need to go. Thank you very much.
CHAIR WHITE: Thank you, Mr. Trotto. Members, questions for the testifier? Seeing none,
appreciate your comments, Mr. Trotto, thanks for being here today. Our next and the last
person to have signed up to testify is Rosemary Robbins. And so if there's anyone else in
the Chambers who would like to testify this morning, please sign up outside.
MS. ROBBINS: Morning, everybody.
CHAIR WHITE: Good morning.
MS. ROBBINS: In view of the BF, Budget and Finance, Item No. 74 on today's agenda titled,
Circuit Breaker Tax Credit, well, we've heard so much here this morning and truly
heartfelt testimony by other concerned citizens on what's happening on this, hard to hear.
Hard for our seniors whether or not they've been here for multi generations or they're the
first generations. If they're going to be as costs reflective of other areas negatively
impede their opportunity to live in health and wellbeing and without the kinds of stress
that somebody spoke about needing to be avoided, we need to make sure that this
particular bill for an ordinance amending the chapter of a County Code certainly not be
passed on first call today, and that's the status of it right now. The Committee may

- 17-

BUDGET AND FINANCE COMMITTEE MINUTES
Council of the County of Maui
December 3, 2013

consider whether to recommend passage of the proposed bill on first reading with or
without revisions; please don't do that. This certainly is indicative of the fact that we
need to not rush anything in on first reading. Secondly, I would like to say about that that
people are asking that you revert to the original intention: pono. And, thirdly, I would
like to give particular thanks to Bill Tavares and to John Blumer-Buell. And, I'm sure,
Tony, from wherever he's looking down on the rest of us from here, would be very, very
concerned and appreciative of making sure that COMET, the--. . . (clears throat).
excuse me--the Committee for More Equitable Taxation, be heard and respected. Thank
you on that issue. And the last one is for Budget and Finance Item No. 30, the West
Maui Land Acquisition (Real Property at Launiupoko), the title on that, I've been here for
the presentations by folks in the community and for the deliberation by the people on this
Budget and Finance Committee and have watched this thing be battered from here to
there to elsewhere. I've heard nobody say, the beautiful, open land shouldn't happen;
nobody's gonna say that. We need to make sure that happens. But in my witness and
participation here over that, on a continuum of pilau to pono, the process addressing this
has not been what the public voted for in the 2012 election Charter amendment which
said, yes, pono. Please consider that. Thank you.
CHAIR WHITE: Thank you, Ms. Robbins. Members, questions for the testifier? Seeing none,
thank you very much.
MS. ROBBINS: You're welcome.
CHAIR WHITE: Is there anyone else in the Chambers who would like to testify at this point?
Please step forward.
MS. TAVARES: I need to sign...
CHAIR WHITE: No, that's okay, you can come and testify and then sign the paper after you're
pau testifying. Please state your name for the record.
MS. TAVARES: Jackie Tavares. I did testify about three weeks ago. I have a question. In as
much as.. .we are not allowed to testify unless something is on the agenda for you folks,
is that correct? Was there anything in The Maui News concerning the circuit breaker for
today's meeting?
CHAIR WHITE: We posted...
MS. TAVARES: Did anybody see it in The Maui News? I did not. My question to you is that I
feel that it is not fair to the people who.. .you would have a lot more people here had it
been in the paper where there was the. . . you folks are taking up the circuit breaker. If it is
on your agenda and it was part of today's meeting, and nobody else knew about it. Had I
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not been told by Mr. Tavares, I would not have known. Because not everybody has a
computer, not everybody knows how to testify here at the Council meeting. And 1 feel
very strongly that if you have something as important as the circuit breaker, it should
have been part of the paper with big headlines, because you would have had a lot more
people here. As important as the circuit breaker is, I feel that it's so important that more
people are aware of the fact that you are not allowed to testify on anything unless it is
part of your agenda. So I feel very strongly about this. And my question is, why was
there not a public hearing? We have public hearings for everything else. Why was there
not a public hearing asking people, you know, what's your feelings in regards to the new
stipulations of the circuit breaker, how do you feel about it, how does it affect you? And
what should the public.. .I'm sorry, should the public meeting be in the evening rather
than at the day? It affects a lot of people who are not here. And I just think it's very,
very important that something as critical as the circuit breaker that it should be
publicized. Thank you.
CHAIR WHITE: Thank you, Ms. Tavares. Members, questions for the testifier? Seeing none,
you know, we always do have concerns with getting the word out that we're having
hearings. And I know Chair Baisa is focused on making that happen in a much more
broad fashion. There was an article in the newspaper yesterday regarding this. And the
notices were all posted on our website. So you can go, anyone can go, to the website and
find out what's on the agenda and get the list of items and...
MS. TAVARES: Correct me if I'm wrong, yesterday's publicity in the paper -CHAIR WHITE: Uh-huh.
MS. TAVARES: --did it say that today's agenda would be on the circuit breaker?
CHAIR WHITE: I don't know. I didn't read the full article.
MS. TAVARES: Can anybody help me?
UNIDENTIFIED SPEAKER (from the gallery): Yes, it did.
MS. TAVARES: It did?
CHAIR WHITE: Okay.
MS. TAVARES: Okay, I'm sorry then, I stand corrected. But I really think...
CHAIR WHITE: No, but your point is still well made, and that, you know, we do need to look
for additional ways to get the word out that we're having hearings. And I think the point
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was well made, as well this morning, that when we had our initial hearings on the bill,
there was no one here to testify. Mr. Croly was here.. .oh, I'm sorry, I stand corrected,
Mr. Croly was here to testify, but there was no other involvement. So when we have no
other testifiers, we're feeling like maybe what we're doing is okay. Because it had been
covered in the newspaper; but, that being said, you know, we're happy to take another
look at it and we appreciate your coming to testify today.
MS. TAVARES: Well, if somebody does not buy The Maui News or if somebody does not have
a computer or they don't know how to find out what's on your agenda because they don't
have a computer. . . I'm just thinking in terms of the people outside, you know, other
people, especially if you're older.
CHAIR WHITE: Yeah.
MS. TAVARES: And this circuit breaker is specifically, I think, for a lot of retired people -CHAIR WHITE: Uh-huh.
MS. TAVARES: --who are based on just regular income.
CHAIR WHITE: Correct.
MS. TAVARES: Thank you.
CHAIR WHITE: Thank you. Any other questions?
COUNCILMEMBER BAlSA: Chair?
CHAIR WHITE: Ms. Baisa?
COUNCILMEMBER BAlSA: Ms. Tavares?
MS. TAVARES: Yes?
COUNCILMEMBER BAlSA: Thank you for being here, and thank you for putting your finger
on a issue that is very dear to this Council and especially to myself. I totally understand
your frustration. What I need is--Solomon is in the audience--I would really appreciate
anybody giving us new ideas about how to get the word out. You know, we try really
hard, I try to use the Chair 3 Minutes when I can, try to put it in the paper, it's online;
but how we get that word out to people that don't buy the paper, don't have a computer,
don't know how to search the Internet, it's a tough nut. In fact, I was at a meeting last
night and about 12 of us were brainstorming about, how can we get to the grassroots
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person? And it really is gonna take a communitywide effort. And that means that we
have to spend an awful lot of time, you know, making sure that we meet with community
organizations, get out there and meet with ethnic groups, religious groups, senior citizen
groups; and it takes a lot of effort, and we don't have that kind of manpower. But I think
we need to sit down with our community. And I think it's a really good subject for us to
talk about is, how can we get the word out? 'Cause we really want people to come, we
really want people to know. But even when, you know, whatever we do, sometimes
nobody shows up; and so we say, well, apparently they're okay because we don't hear
from anybody. So, you know, I share your angst. I want you to know I'm very
committed, I haven't given up, we're gonna keep trying to find ways to get the word out.
But thank you.
MS. TAVARES: Maybe within the communities, there are senior citizens and, you know, if you
do a flyer on something as important as this, when they have their meetings, they could in
turn pass it out to the members.
COIJNCILMEMBER BAlSA: The problem is we have to plan far in advance in order -MS. TAVARES: Uh-huh.
COUNCILMEMBER BAlSA: --to do that. So I just want you to know that, you know, we're
not ignoring it, we understand and we are really looking. So we're gonna try everything
we can. Thank you.
MS. TAVARES: Thank you, thank you very much.
COUNCILMEMBER BAlSA: Thank you.
CHAIR WHITE: Thank you, Ms. Tavares. Alright. There's no one else in the Chambers, we'll
go to the district offices. First to Hana, Dawn, do you have anyone there to testify at this
point?
MS. LONO: The Hana Office has no one waiting to testify, Chair.
CHAIR WHITE: Thank you. And, Denise, on Lanai?
MS. FERNANDEZ: There is no one waiting to testify on Lanai.
CHAIR WHITE: And, Ella, on Molokai?
MS. ALCON: There's no one here on Molokai waiting to testify.
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CHAIR WHITE: Thank you, ladies; we'll sign off with you. And one last call for testifiers in
the Chambers. Seeing none, without objection, Chair would close public testimony.
COUNCIL MEMBERS: No objections.
CHAIR WHITE: Thank you. Public testimony is closed.
.END OF PUBLIC TESTIMONY...

ITEM NO. 6: COST ITEM PROPOSALS (CC

13-336, 13-337)

CHAIR WHITE: Members, today we have five items on our agenda. The first relates to a
correction on the Unit 13 cost items and then we have two Budget amendments and the
last two relate to the circuit breaker tax credit and land acquisition in West Maui. So,
with that, we'll move to our first item.
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Sorry.
COTJNCILMEMBER COUCH: Chair?
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Need a mid-morning break.
CHAIR WHITE: Okay. Well, there seems to be some interest in taking a quick break, so we
will take our morning recess. And so please be back here at 10:20. We're in recess.
(gavel)...
RECESS: 10:10 a.m.
RECONVENE:

10:25 a.m.

CHAIR WHITE: . . . (gavel). .. The Budget and Finance Committee will come back to order.
Members, we are proceeding with our agenda starting with BF-6 regarding Cost Item
Proposals. And we have Sandy Baz, our Budget Director; Lance Hiromoto, our
Personnel Services Director. And the description of the items, the Committee is in
receipt of County Communication 13-336 and 13-337, from the Mayor, transmitting
proposed resolutions to approve cost items for professional and scientific employees
included in Bargaining Unit 13 and those excluded from Bargaining Unit 13. And what
we will be considering again today is, we are in receipt of correspondence dated
November 26th, from the Department of the Corporation Counsel, transmitting the
following: a revised proposed resolution entitled, Approving Cost Items for Bargaining
Unit 13 and Professional and Scientific--I'm sorry, not "and"--Bargaining Unit 13,
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Professional and Scientific Employees. The revised proposed resolution incorporates
nonsubstantive revisions; and, b, a revised proposed resolution entitled, Approving Cost
Items for Professional and Scientific Employees Excluded from Bargaining Unit 13. The
revised proposed resolution corrects errors made to the Additional Costs for Fiscal
Years 2014, '15, '16 and '17, respectfully, and incorporates nonsubstantive revisions.
So, with that, Mr. Hiromoto, if you'd like to provide some opening comments?
MR. HIROMOTO: Good morning, Chair; good morning, Members. At your last Committee
meeting on November these items were on the agenda. This Committee voted to
approve recommending adoption of these resolutions. However, subsequent to that
meeting, we discovered that the cost figures for the excluded Bargaining Unit 13
employees were overstated. Therefore, we redid the numbers and redid the resolution,
and that's what you have before you this morning. The included amounts were correct.
It was only for the excluded employees that was incorrect; and, again, it was overstated.
And I just wanna take this opportunity, also, to apologize for this Committee's having to
revisit these items.
CHAIR WHITE: No need to apologize. We're happy to revisit. Members, any questions for
Mr. Hiromoto?
COUNCILMEMBER BAlSA: No questions.
CHAIR WHITE: . . . (Clears throat)... Excuse me. Okay. The Chair is very comfortable. We
were hoping to do this as a floor amendment at Council meeting, but we were advised
that we needed to come back to Committee because of the type of change that it was. So
this should be an easy vote since we've all voted in favor of this once already.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Oh no, it's less, so...... (laughter,)...
CHAIR WHITE: Oh, that's right, it's an even easier vote. ... (Laughter)... Okay. So if the
Committee is ready for recommendation?

COUNCIL MEMBERS: Recommendation?
CHAIR WHITE: The Chair will entertain a motion to adopt the revised proposed resolutions
attached to correspondence dated November 26, 2013 and filing County
Communication 13-336 and 13-337 -COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: So moved. . .oh.
CHAIR WHITE: --in addition to allowing Staff to make nonsubstantive revisions.
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COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: So moved, Mr. Chair.
COUNCILMEMBER BAlSA: Second.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Second.
CHAIR WHITE: It's been moved by Mr. Victorino and seconded by Ms. Baisa to pass the bills
as outlined. Any further discussion? Seeing none, all those in favor, please signify by
saying, "aye".
COUNCIL MEMBERS: Aye.
CHAIR WHITE: Those opposed, say, "no". Measure carries, eight "ayes", zero 'noes".
VOTE:

AYES:

Chair White, and Councilmembers Balsa,
Carroll, Cochran, Couch, Crivello, Guzman, and
Victorino.

NOES:

None.

ABSTAIN:

None.

ABSENT:

None.

EXC.:

Vice-Chair Hokama.

MOTION CARRIED.
ACTION: ADOPTION of revised resolutions and FILING of
communications by C.R.
LAHAINA
ITEM NO. 67: AMENDING FY 2014 BUDGET:
RECREATION CENTER BALLFIELD LIGHTS
(CC 13-360)

CHAIR WHITE: Thank you, Members. And we'll move on to our second item, BF-67. And
we have Brianna Savage, Deputy Director of Parks, joining us this morning. Good
morning, Ms. Savage.
MS. SAVAGE: Morning.
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CHAIR WHITE: And we are in receipt of County Communication 13-360, from the Budget
Director, transmitting a proposed bill entitled, A Bill for an Ordinance Amending the
Fiscal Year 2014 Budget for the County of Maui as it Pertains to Estimated Revenues;
West Maui Community Plan Area, Parks and Recreation, Lahaina Recreation Center
Ballfield Lights; Total Capital Improvement Project Appropriations; and Total
Appropriations (Operating and Capital Improvement Projects). And the purpose of this
bill is to amend the Fiscal Year 2014 Budget by, first, increasing the estimated revenues
for the Special Assessments, Park Assessment Fund, by $33,000; and, second, increasing
the appropriation for the Lahaina Recreation Center Ballfield Lights project, West Maui
Community Plan Area, by the same.. . I'm sorry, $33,000 amount. So, Ms. Savage, would
you like to provide comments?
MS. SAVAGE: Good morning, Chair; morning, Council members. Just, I guess, a little
background on this. The Lahaina Recreation Center balifield lights, this is for four lights
that would light up the existing football field area, which also gets utilized by the local
soccer, rugby, and just other recreational activities in that grass area. There was funding
for design in Fiscal Year '13, it was $33,000 for the design cost; and then 365,000
appropriated this last Fiscal Year '14 for the construction. We just had the bid opening
for the project in October, and it ended up being about $33,000 more than was originally
appropriated. And we'd like to be able to still move forward with installation of this in
the spring of 2014.
CHAIR WHITE: Members, questions?
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Chair?
CHAIR WHITE: Mr. Victorino?
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Just for the public's clarification, these four lights will
now fill both the soccer and football field or just the football field?
MS. SAVAGE: These four lights will light up just the existing football field.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: That runs parallel to the highway -MS. SAVAGE: Correct.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: --not the soccer field that kinda runs -MS. SAVAGE: Correct.
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COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: --long way. Oh, I forget the term I trying to think of at this
point. But, you know, just that one football field next to the youth center?
MS. SAVAGE: Correct.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Okay. So we have no plans to put lights for the additional
soccer field? 'Cause I know that's another one that's heavily, heavily used by the
community and in high school, also.
MS. SAVAGE: Currently, with this, it's just the lighting for the football field that's being
looked at. But I mean it's definitely something we can go back and look at what other
locations to be lit up.
COIJNCILMEMBER VICTOR1NO: Would that make that available for high school play during
the season? Because I know one of the challenges for Lahaina is the transportation and
having night games, which they're always been limited because of lack of lighting.
Would this make it available, that field?
MS. SAVAGES ... .Goughs... Excuse me. That's something we could, I guess, discuss with
MIL. There'd probably be some concern with, you know, where would seating go if
they're charging admission? How would you, you know, control the certain area? But if
there was a desire for that, I think it's something that could be discussed, definitely.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: If I'm correct, right now, they don't charge because there
is no means of charging for those games in the West Maui Youth Center, that field there.
So, I don't think, having lights not gonna change those dynamics already, especially
when Lanai and Molokai come over and they can play Lahaina in Lahaina and not have
to drive to Kahului or to Central to play 'em and then drive back. it is a great efficiency
for them and cost effective. In fact, sometimes they can come in the morning, play their
games and be back in the late evening, you know. So, anyhow, thank you for this. This
is long overdue. Thank you, Mr. Chair.
CHAIR WHITE: Mr. Guzman?
COUNCILMEMBER GUZMAN: Thank you, Chair. I just had a quick question. On the lights
itself, are those energy-saving-type lights, environmentally friendly type lights?
MS. SAVAGE: I don't have all the specifics, specs, for those exact lights. But they're, believe,
Musco-type lighting, which is what gets utilized and been put up at some of our other
facilities. They're new, so they're gonna have a lot of those technologies, you know,
built into them as far as, not necessarily, you know, solar powered or those type of lights,
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but they're gonna. . .because they're newer, they're gonna have a lot of that stuff already
built into them so that they're more efficient.
COUNCILMEMBER GUZMAN: Okay. So they have that energy-efficient-type component
built. . . okay. Thank you, Chair.
CHAIR WHITE: Ms. Cochran?
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Thank you, Chair. And thank you, Ms. Savage, for being
here. But I wanna jump on Mr. Victorino's comments about the soccer field. And I
don't know if this got dropped between Mr. Matsui leaving or what have you, but the
origination of why the lights were proposed and voted on during the last Budget to be
installed is specifically.. .1 mean it's for other games, but it was targeting soccer. I had
gotten comments from a family out in Napili, and I have nephews that played soccer and
they all had issues that they had to come all the way to this side to do night soccer games.
And so that was one of the specific reasons why I fought so hard to get these bailfield
lights put in. So now I'm hearing, the only thing being looked at is the football. So I'm
for all sports and increasing night play and what have you, but that was the specific
reason why it was even brought up to the table to be discussed to begin with. So it's very
disappointing for me to hear this right now, but so be it. If that's what you folks are
looking at, then I will be supportive. Again, like I said, I'm all for more play for our
families and kids for the evenings, but that's what I recall. Thank you, Chair.
CHAIR WHITE: Uh-huh. Ms. Savage, any comments on that?
MS. SAVAGE: Unfortunately, I don't have any direct, you know, clarification on that
specifically. I mean we can definitely go back and look at, you know, configurations. If
we were to increase the number of light poles, obviously, the cost is gonna increase
significantly and the design will change somewhat as well. But, again, we can, you
know, at least take a look at what kind of configurations can still be done, what areas can
be lit up, yeah.
CHAIR WHITE: Is the field able to be used for both sports?
MS. SAVAGE: The football space area, yes, could be utilized. Currently, it's set up to where
you can utilize both the football field running parallel to the highway and the soccer field
going perpendicular. So, right now, you'll have simultaneous use, same thing with the
baseball and softball fields that are there. So you can have multiple sports running at all
different locations, currently, within that facility.
CHAIR WHITE: No, my question was whether the football field--I know I've seen rugby
played there--but is it.. .some of them can be configured for soccer as well?
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MS. SAVAGE: Yes.
CHAIR WHITE: Okay. So that is an option that would take care of the soccer night games?
MS. SAVAGE: As long as it's at different times -CHAIR WHITE: Right.
MS. SAVAGE: --you know, different days, yeah?
CHAIR WHITE: Right.
MS. SAVAGE: Uh-huh.
CHAIR WHITE: Okay, thank you. Mr. Couch?
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Thank you, Mr. Chair. Ms. Savage, just a...I can't remember
exactly how wide that field is. I know a football field's 55 yards wide, and that's the
minimum for soccer and it's not very good. There is some space for a wider soccer field
there, is that right?
MS. SAVAGE: Correct. I think 62 yards is the minimum recommendation for the State to
hold -COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Right.
MS. SAVAGE: --actual, official regulation, high school games. They prefer the 62-yard width.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Okay. And there's that room there?
MS. SAVAGE: Yes.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: And is it striped for soccer as well or is that a separate...
MS. SAVAGE: It's predominantly used for football, and then the soccer is running
perpendicular to it. But I mean I'm sure, you know, reconfigurations can be made -COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Yeah.
MS. SAVAGE: --you know, specifically for games as they're played. Uh-huh.
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COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Okay. So that might be a good stopgap measure -CHAIR WHITE: Uh-huh.
CO1IINCILMEMBER COUCH: --until we can get the other lights, too. But I agree with
Ms. Cochran is that I thought we were gonna do soccer lights as well. So -CHAIR WHITE: Yeah.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: --okay, thank you.
CHAIR WHITE: Mr. Victorino?
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Well, you know, I don't wanna throw more fuel on the
fire, but I'm gonna tell you that, first of all, we've never played soccer there because of
the probability of balls being kicked onto the highway, so you can forget that. I going tell
you that now 'cause I've been out there for 20-something years as a official and as a
coach. You can't. Because of the way the configuration of the field and the close
proximity to the fence line, you'd be having balls going onto the highway. And
Mr. Ueoka can attest 'cause he played out there. So that's why that field has to be the
only field for soccer, that's the only reason why that lateral field has been soccer all these
years. 'Cause if you kick a ball hard, you know, it goes into the softball field across
adjacent to it or it goes over to the football field, but it doesn't go onto the highway. And
that's why we configurated that many, many years ago, about 25 years ago when we were
looking at that, that's why soccer was never played. Rugby is a little different than
soccer. So I agree with Ms. Cochran, I also thought that's what we were doing to put in
lights for soccer. Now, I'm not against football and, you know, and that be.. .help the
Lahaina people practice at night, now, and late afternoon. So, you know, no qualms with
that, but I would really, really encourage you guys to go look very quickly. And we got
money, it's not like West Maui doesn't have money. If any place can do something, it's
West Maui. Let's get it done and as soon as possible. Because the soccer community out
there has waited many, many years; I'm talking over a decade waiting for those lights.
So I agree with Ms. Cochran, I thought that's exactly what we were doing. And, now
that we've talked about a little more further, Mr. Chair, it's not. So we can finish this
one, but let's make it a priority to get the next one completed ASAP. Thank you,
Mr. Chair.
CHAIR WHITE: Yeah, your point is well taken, Mr. Victorino, that the West Maui fund is the
only one with substantial money in it. And so I would encourage the Administration,
with your comments and Ms. Cochran's, to come back to us with a additional Budget
amendment to move forward with those soccer lights.
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COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: And many of us has asked Ms. Cochran if we could
borrow some, but, you know, it just doesn't happen. No, I'm just joking. All joking
aside, yes, let's get it done. Thank you, Chair.
CHAIR WHITE: Thank you. Any further comments, Members? Seeing none, the Chair is
ready to make his recommendation.
COUNCIL MEMBERS: Recommendation?
CHAIR WHITE: Chair will entertain a motion to adopt a proposed bill on first reading and the
filing of County Communication 13-360 and to allow Staff to make nonsubstantive
revisions.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: So moved, Mr. Chair.
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Second.
CHAIR WHITE: It's been moved by Mr. Victorino and seconded by Ms. Cochran to pass the
bill as earlier read. Any further discussion, Members? Seeing none, all those in favor,
please signify by saying, "aye".
COUNCIL MEMBERS: Aye.
CHAIR WHITE: Those opposed, say, "no". Motion carries, seven "ayes", zero "noes";
Members Carroll and Hokama, "excused".
VOTE:

AYES:

Chair White, and Councilmembers Balsa,
Cochran, Couch, Crivello, Guzman, and
Victorino.

NOES:

None.

ABSTAIN:

None.

ABSENT:

None.

EXC.:

Vice-Chair Hokama,
Carroll.

MOTION CARRIED.
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ACTION: FIRST READING of bill; and FILING of
communication by C.R.

ITEM NO. 87: AMENDING FY 2014 BUDGET: LAHAINA CIVIC
CENTER TENNIS COMPLEX (CC 13-361)
CHAIR WHITE: And we are on to our third item, which is BF-87, Amending Fiscal Year 2014
Budget: Lahaina Civic Center Tennis Complex. And we are in receipt of County
Communication 13-361, from the Budget Director, transmitting a proposed bill entitled,
A Bill for an Ordinance Amending the Fiscal Year 2014 Budget for the County of Maui
as it Pertains to Estimated Revenues; West Maui Community Plan Area, Parks and
Recreation, Lahaina Civic Center Tennis Complex; Total Capital Improvement Project
Appropriations; and Total Appropriations (Operating and Capital Improvement Projects).
Purpose of this bill is to amend the Fiscal Year 2014 Budget by, first, increasing the
estimated revenues for the Special Assessments, Park Assessment Fund, by $335,000;
and adding $335,000 appropriation for the Lahaina Civic Center Tennis Complex, West
Maui Community Plan Area. And, Ms. Savage, you have opening comments?
MS. SAVAGE: Yes, so this came about after we received a donation to do the DreamCourt
installation out at the Lahaina Civic Center, and that installation went over very well.
There's been a lot of use just in the last month or so that it's been available. And so
we're wanting to. . .the four remaining tennis courts that need to be resurfaced and rebuilt,
two of 'em need to be rebuilt, the other two resurfaced; and so we're requesting funds to
do that. We'd also.. .I'd like to mention that we would like to look into exploring
utilizing the Sport Court surfacing also on the other old tennis court that's next to the one
that the DreamCourt was placed on. And the intention with that Sport Court surfacing,
there's a possibility that it could have overall, decreased maintenance expenses. When
we do resurfacing, it needs to be done every five to seven years, and it's typically
between 15 to 20 thousand dollars. This Sport Court surfacing is about 15 to 20 thousand
dollars for the same space and it's guaranteed for 15 years. And so there would be some
savings, especially if we were able to utilize this at multiple locations across the County.
So we'd like to look a little bit further into putting that DreamCourt surfacing on that
other tennis court and being able to make it multipurpose. Still installed, the tennis court
poles, so it would still be used as a tennis court, but have them be removable so that you
could also bring out portable baskets and have three small basketball courts going side by
side with the eight-foot hoops for the youngest age group. And those would just be
portable baskets on wheels that could be brought out while that program was running and
then removed. The Sport Court surfacing, testing that out for tennis would, again, kinda
be a pilot process, allow different sports to actually play on the surfacing, see if it's, you
know, sufficient and something that would be equal quality, I guess, an accepted usage
by the different recreational users.
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CHAIR WHITE: Okay. Members, questions for the Department? Mr. Guzman?
COUNCILMEMBER GUZMAN: Oh, thank you. I just have a comment. I wanted to commend
the Department as well as the Mayor's Office and Mr. Baz to bringing this item forward.
I know that this did pass through my Committee, EAR Committee. And I guess the issue
came up wherein there were nine tennis courts, and one of them was going to be donated
and converted to a basketball court, so therefore, the tennis community was losing out on
one of their tennis courts. But, in the end result, we found out that four of the tennis
courts needed repair. And so this is a win-win situation for both communities, basketball
community as well as the tennis community. So I'm very happy to see this come forth.
I'd like to ask my Members to support this as well. If any one of the Members have had
an opportunity to go on the DreamCourt, it's an awesome surface. The ball shoots right
off of there. And to see it possibly be implemented as a multipurpose on the adjacent
court is very exciting, so I commend the Administration for going forth on this. Thank
you.
CHAIR WHITE: Members, other questions? Ms. Cochran?
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Thank you. Yeah, I'm looking forward to the improvements
there at the courts. So the Sport Court, though--unfortunately, I wasn't able to make it to
the blessing of that--it has not ever been used for tennis?
MS. SAVAGE: Here, in Maui County, it hasn't. It is a multipurpose sports surface. So, on the
Mainland, there's indoor and outdoor facilities that utilize this surfacing for just about
every sport, you know: tennis, indoor soccer, futsal, basketball, volleyball, rollerbiading,
roller skating, roller derby, so it's certified for many different types of sports to play on.
COLTNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Oh, okay. And then the dollar amendment here is
incorporating the cost of such a court?
MS. SAVAGE: Correct.
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Okay. Thank you. Thank you, Chair.
CHAIR WHITE: Just for clarification, how many courts are being resurfaced?
MS. SAVAGE: There would be two being resurfaced and two being rebuilt. One of the double
courts side by side, the damage is extensive enough that it actually has to be completely
rebuilt; and the other two can just have an acrylic resurfacing done to just kind of repair
the cracks that are currently in existence.
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CHAIR WHITE: Okay.
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Chair?
CHAIR WHITE: Ms. Cochran?
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: So does that leave three courts, then, not being addressed
that are unusable right now?
MS. SAVAGE: No, there's currently eight tennis courts there: four of 'em are the newer ones,
which are usable, and then the four in the back are the older ones that need to be repaired.
So this would then take care of all of the tennis courts at this location -COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Okay.
MS. SAVAGE: --and put 'em all back in, full use.
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Okay. Good, thank you. Thank you, Chair.
CHAIR WHITE: Yeah, so all eight will be back in service.
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Very good. Thank you.
CHAIR WHITE: Any further comments or questions, Members? Seeing none, the Chair is
ready to make his recommendation.
COUNCIL MEMBERS: Recommendation?
CHAIR WHITE: The Chair will entertain a motion to adopt the proposed bill on first reading
and the filing of County Communication 13-361 and allow the Staff to make
nonsubstantive revisions.
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Chair?
COUNCILMEMBER GUZMAN: So moved.
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: So moved.
CHAIR WHITE: I will call that a tie. So -COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Sorry.
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CHAIR WHITE: -- if Ms. Cochran would like to make the motion?
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Yes, Chair, I will. So moved. Thank you, Chair.
COUNCILMEMBER GUZMAN: Second.
CHAIR WHITE: And seconded.
COUNCILMEMBER GUZMAN: Thank you.
CHAIR WHITE: The motion has been made by Ms. Cochran and seconded by Mr. Guzman.
Any further discussion, Members? Seeing none, all those in favor, please signify by
saying, "aye".
COUNCIL MEMBERS: Aye.
CHAIR WHITE: Those opposed, say, "no". Measure carries, eight "ayes" and zero "noes" with
Member Hokama "excused".
VOTE:

AYES:

Chair White, and Councilmembers Balsa,
Carroll, Cochran, Couch, Crivello, Guzman, and
Victorino.

NOES:

None.

ABSTAIN:

None.

ABSENT:

None.

EXC.:

Vice-Chair Hokama.

MOTION CARRIED.
ACTION: FIRST READING of bill; and FILING of
communication by C.R.

ITEM NO. 74: RELATING TO CIRCUIT BREAKER TAX CREDIT
(CC 13-310,13-363)

CHAIR WHITE: Thank you, Ms. Savage. Members, we will now move on to our fourth item of
the day, BF-74, Circuit Breaker Tax Credit. And the Committee is in receipt of County
Communication 13-310 and 13-363, from Council Chair Gladys Baisa, transmitting
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correspondence dated September 6 th and October 25, 2013 from the Committee for More
Equitable Taxation, relating to recent revisions to the circuit breaker tax credit; and, also,
correspondence dated November 22, 2013, from the Chair of the Committee, transmitting
a proposed bill entitled, A Bill for an Ordinance Amending Chapter 3.48, Maui County
Code, Relating to the Circuit Breaker Tax Credit. And the purposes of the proposed bill
are to, first, provide for an appeal process for taxpayers who receive the circuit breaker
tax credit for the tax year ending June 30, 2014, but failed to qualify for the tax year
ending June 30, 2015. Secondly, we're amending the ordinance to amend the
qualification criteria for the circuit breaker tax credit by allowing an ownership interest in
other real property if the other real property is vacant and has a market land value that
does not exceed $10,000. And, third, allow the homeowner until January 31, 2014, to file
an application of the circuit breaker for tax year ending June 30, 2015. And, fourth, to
advance the deadline for notification if a homeowner does not qualify for the credit to
March 1st of the preceding tax year. Let me just provide some opening remarks. I think
we had some great testimony this morning. This has been a great lesson with respect to
Ms. Baisa's concerns about getting notice out. I think it speaks volumes that we had this
on the agenda and we had a couple of discussions and then we had discussions at the
Council level once it passed out of Committee. And, as Mr. Croly pointed out, he was
the only one that showed up. So the Chair is very comfortable revisiting this, and I
appreciate Mr. Victorino providing a bill to suggest repeal of both the second-home
criteria and the $400,000 building value cap. The reason I've chosen not to put that on
the agenda today is that I think we need to review, in detail, what the impacts are. You
know, it's been mentioned a number of times that we waima go after the cheaters, but the
Chair needs to remind all of us that there are no cheaters in this. We have earlier passed
laws that have made it relatively easy for people to take advantage of this tax credit even
though they have a significant means with which to pay the taxes and have significant
real property interest. So the Chair's interest is to take the time.. .the reason for the
appeal is to put off anyone having to commit to the payment. And none of these
payments will be made until August 201h of next year, and so we have time to go back in
and fine tune this. We've got some very good testimony this morning that points us in
several directions. And, certainly, if we find, through the information, that a repeal of
one item or another is appropriate, the Chair will certainly support that. Our interest is
simply to gather all the information regarding the folks that have applied and those that
have not applied. So that when we do deliberate on the changes that are appropriate,
we're doing so with the full amount of information. The Finance Department, Director
Agsalog, has been very helpful in providing information as to how many applications
there have been. Then one of the challenges that we face is that there have been so few
applicants or the level of application is down significantly. So that's one of the reasons
we're recommending an extension to January 3 l to allow for more people to apply, so
we're working with a larger baseline of information. And I also have to note that the
Director of Finance has provided us with a Budget amendment to provide him some
additional funds that he is in need of because of the circuit breaker changes, and I'm sure
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that those numbers will likely increase a bit. So rather than hear the amendment now
when he still has plenty of money in his accounts, we'll wait until after we've gone
through this next round and then we'll entertain the Budget amendment when it's
reflecting the full amount necessary. And, with that, I will open it up for comments from
the Director of Finance or Budget Director.
MR. AGSALOG: Good morning, Mr. Chair and Members of the Committee. And thank you,
Mr. Chair, for acknowledging the request of our Department for extra money. My
comment, right now, is just purely logistics not a policy type of comments. You was
looking at your three point eight, eight one five [sic], which is the deadlines that would,
again, cut my time. And it's the time, also, for a busy time for us for the mailing of bills
that's due February 20th• And during the mailing of the billings, Mr. Chair, it is a busy,
busy time for my staff for call in, window services and how they serve the public, that's
really going to cut my time in serving the public more efficiently. The other one on
Section 4, which is Item B, April 30 and March 1st that will cut 60 days. You know, it's
just March 1st and April 30 that's 60 days cut in my way of processing all these
requests. So, again, this is also to inform the public that if they are in appeal in the
current ordinance that we have, they still have to pay the bills even they appeal and they
have to pay this $75 appeal. So there's a cost to the public that's appealing, okay. So it's
just logistics of what I wanna tell the public today, Mr. Chair. And I can tell you today,
because of the numbers that you cited, Mr. Chair, it's not that only those numbers that
was stated are the people that came to our office. Those are the only application we
received, but we have served way, way more than that, because every single one that
normally apply would have come in our office to be served or called on the phone and
find out more. So the 3,000 Premium Pay that was given by the Council to my
Collection section has been exhausted over that, so my overtime has gone. And I have
some work that has not been done, because serving the public by a telephone, window
service and, you know, it doesn't count for the not very nice experience between
transactions between my staff and the taxpayers. One big one, Mr. Chair, that they have
a difficulty, these are seniors where they cannot provide the transcript, IRS transcript, and
tax statement, that is a very, very difficult situation with them; and I have spent... one
taxpayer, maybe three or four times called my office. But the other wordings is just I
cannot exempt them because it says, shall provide. So, again, I do not have that
discretion, Mr. Chair. Anyway, I will answer more questions as far as this proposal is
concerned. But I would really appreciate it, Mr. Chair, if we will be able to hear the cost
that I am now asking you, and I know that you have it in your agenda to be here soon.
CHAIR WHITE: Yeah, the Chair is very supportive of covering that cost item.
MR. AGSALOG: Thank you, Mr. Chair.
CHAIR WHITE: Mr. Baz, did you have any comments?
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MR. BAZ: No.
CHAIR WHITE: Okay. Members, questions? Mr. Couch?
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Thank you, Mr. Chair. I got several. The overall thing, I
thought we talked about this when we started doing the original bill is, how much money,
you know--when we had the old circuit breaker versus this circuit breaker--how much
were we gaining, if you will, or how much money is...
CHAIR WHITE: I believe we were.. .the circuit breaker credits given amounted to just over
$1 million.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Yeah, something around 1.3.
CHAIR WHITE: One point one or one...
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Okay. Did we ever. . .1 thought I had requested at the other
hearing about this is, how much of that--you know, we're trying to, like you say,
nobody's cheating the system -CHAIR WHITE: Uh-huh.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: --we're trying to cover the people who really need it versus the
people who don't need it--did we ever get that difference? Has the Department able to
actually figure that out?
CHAIR WHITE: Well, the Department gave us a significant amount of information breaking
down how many credits were over, but they gave us all the bars of how many were -COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Yeah...
CHAIR WHITE: --at this level, how many were at this level, how many were over $10,000.
They gave us a breakdown of how many residences were over $400,000.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Uh-huh.
CHAIR WHITE: So they gave us quite a bit of information. The Chair's interest is, as we go
forward during this window that we create by allowing appeals, is to go back in and look
at that information again with the applications that come in -COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Right.
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CHAIR WHITE: --and hopefully we'll be able to get more information.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: And that brings up the next question is, to the Director, it
sounds like what you're saying is that there are less people applying due to the changes
that are there, is that correct? So I mean if we extend it, are we gonna get more
applications?
MR. AGSALOG: Mr. Chair, I think the answer to the question is correct that less people turn in
their application. It's not necessarily lesser people to come to our window or call us on
the phone and write letters to us. I think if they were qualified last year, they
automatically will come and talk to us there. I did not ask my staff to log in every single
one that came or already getting upset and just walking away. The number applications
are those numbers that we have received. I hope that's clear. We received those, but
there are people that wanted to apply, but when they see the ordinance that's.. .because I
have asked my staff to copy the ordinance -COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Uh-huh.
MR. AGSALOG: --and give it to them, and that's the only way we could have a discussion with
them because they think that we did it just like that. You know, I mean we have to tell
them that there's a new ordinance so we have to show them the ordinance, and they do
not come back and put the application because they cannot get their transcript or IRS
form.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: So, in essence, you had a lot. I mean, you know, if you look at
some of the numbers submitted by testimony, last year we had 1,073 applications
received, this year, only 271, which is kind of a difference of, I think they said, 802. Of
those 802 people, how many of those actually came and tried to.. .not tried to apply but
came to your window and you said, well, here's the ordinance, and they said, oh, I don't
qualify and left? I'm just wondering if we extend it, are we actually gonna catch more
people, give more people a chance to come in?
CHAIR WHITE: Well, it's the Chair's feeling that, with the extension, we also need to send a
letter to anyone who qualified last year and advise them of what we're doing. Because
if.. . and I think the Director is correct that they probably had a number of people that
came to the window and -COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Just walked.
CHAIR WHITE: --did not end up filing.
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COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Right.
CHAIR WHITE: And there are probably others that didn't come at all. And so for us to get that
kind of information.. .and I have to say that the Department has been very good about
providing us the details on this -COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Yeah.
CHAIR WHITE: --and it's been very helpful.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Okay. And, lastly, if we do an appeal process--I think we had a
testifier up there who was a member of the Board--we have to give them the discretion to
be able to make that change. Right now, as the testifier and the Director said that they
shall and that's it. So we need to figure out how to get them some discretion.
CHAIR WHITE: Yeah. They need to have discretion and the Department needs to have
discretion on what they require. And I think the most compelling stories that we heard
from Mr. Agsalog's staff were those where you had a senior coming in who is just
confused by the process, confused with what they needed to do, and that's, you know,
that's something we don't want.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Right.
CHAIR WHITE: So we need to have a way of better handling that by giving them the
discretion. So if they see somebody that doesn't have the means and is having a hard
time working through the process that we provide them an easier way to go about that.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Okay. Thank you, Chair.
CHAIR WHITE: Members, other questions?
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Chair?
CHAIR WHITE: Ms. Cochran?
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Thank you. And on Board with the, I guess, Mr. Erfer is
part of the Property Tax Review Board, which is similar to, say, our Traffic Safety
Councilor no? Who...
MR. AGSALOG: Yeah, he's the Chair of the Board of Review, yes. They hear the -COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Appeals?
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MR. AGSALOG: --case of the appellant, and then we also have our assessors that will defend
the assessment. Because the one that we are appealing right now is just the exemption, if
they were not given the exemption and the assessment. There's no appeal for taxes,
there's no appeal for taxes -COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Oh.
MR. AGSALOG: --today, it's just the assessment and the exemption -COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Okay. And...
MR. AGSALOG: --as we speak today. So unless you amend it that includes the taxes, I don't
know if that's going to change the dynamics of how the appeal process going to be,
because the property bill cannot be appealed.
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Okay. And...
CHAIR WHITE: The Chair's intent is to get this passed and start working on the changes that
we all feel may need to be made so that, in the end, we have very few actually going
through the appeals process.
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Okay. Yeah, that would be wonderful. But so I'm just
curious, and maybe for you Chair or I'm not sure if Department, but through my
Committee, Infrastructure and Environmental Management, when it comes to legislation,
it has to have something to do with traffic impacts, let's say, then it goes through the
Traffic Safety Council and I get comments and then those comments are put into the
Committee work and what have you. So I heard Mr. Erfer saying that they have never
had an opportunity to chime in and give comment towards any type of legislation and
policy-making procedures, so I wasn't sure if .. obviously, it has never been done, but
would it be helpful to us as a body?
CHAIR WHITE: The Chair is open to including them. I know that, in previous years, the
concern has been that they've been saddled with a heavy, heavy load of appeals. So I
don't think it would be... I don't think it was terribly on top of anybody's mind to give
them additional things to deal with. But my understanding is that they have reduced the
level of appeals going through. And if the Department is okay with it, I'm okay with it.
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Okay. Yeah, does Department have comment?
CHAIR WHITE: Mr. Agsalog, do you have feelings about that?
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MR. AGSALOG: I don't know if that's a legal issue or not. But I think if they want to
participate in crafting the legislation, for me, the more the merrier. I guess it's the ideas
that make the legislation better if it is included. But as you have mentioned, Chair, this is
the only two years that they have completed their number of appeals that's given to them
and heard all of them. And, prior years, they didn't even have quorums to hear all those
appeals. So, this year, I really congratulate the Board that they have done their work.
And if they desire to take on more work, eh, the more the merrier.
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Thank you.
CHAIR WHITE: And it may be that I know Mr. Erfer is very much involved in watching tax
issues, so it may be that he and one or two other members of the Board are willing to
provide a review on their own personal time. So that may be another option, if the Board
itself has a heavy agenda.
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Right. Okay. Thank you. Just thought I'd bring that up.
CHAIR WHITE: Ms. Cochran?
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: No.
COUNCILMEMBER CRIVELLO: No.
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Oh, Crivello.
COUNCILMEMBER CRIVELLO: Crivello.
CHAIR WHITE: I mean Crivello.
COUNCILMEMBER CRIVELLO: Thank you, Chair. I guess for the extension that we're
asking for, are we looking at this for two purposes, to allow this Committee to sort of
dissect or repeal or what have you? But, to me, we still don't address what disqualifies
the applicant or what qualifies the applicant. I mean if you've had only 271 applications,
you know, we'd like to think that all those who tried to use this as a loophole would be,
but is it because it's more confusing or are we depriving those who should be having this
circuit breaker? And I don't know where the answer is or who can give us the answer.
But will this allow us.. .is it twofold, the extension for the appeals?
CHAIR WHITE: Yes.
COUNCILMEMBER CRIVELLO: Okay. So but the Codes or the Rules do not change.
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CHAIR WHITE: No, and that's the purpose for the appeal, it puts it in a holding pattern while
we make the changes. Whereas, a full repeal would simply put. . . it would basically give
back the money to the folks that have the means to pay. And I would prefer that we take
the time to fine tune the way that we establish our criteria rather than just simply giving
back the funds to the folks that are well off and have the means to pay.
COUNCILMEMBER CRIVELLO: Okay. So we will have all this information from the
Department, you know, for those who do not actually qualify and...
CHAIR WHITE: Right. Well, that's why we need to correspond with those that qualified last
year and let them know what their options are.
COUNCILMEMBER CRIVELLO: And I think it'd be helpful for us to also identify why they
don't qualify this year.
CHAIR WHITE: Yeah, they do have.. .for those that have turned in applications, they do have
the information as to why they were not qualified. And so one of the important things for
us to understand is, if you were disqualified on how many. . . how many of the criteria
were you disqualified? So this will give us.. .we probably won't get all the information
we're looking for, but it'll give us more information than we have now.
COLTNCILMEMBER CRIVELLO: Okay. And the other... amend the qualification criteria for
the circuit breaker tax credit by allowing an ownership interest in another property if the
other real property is vacant and has a market land value that does not exceed $10,000, is
this real? Does this happen on Maui?
CHAIR WHITE: Yeah, that was brought up by the Department to correct very clear unfairness.
Because several homeowners have remnant lots or roadway lots that have no value. And
so we put the value of 10,000 in there knowing that the value of these remnant lots and
roadway lots is much less than that.
COUNCILMEMBER CRIVELLO: Okay. That's all for now, Chair, thank you.
CHAIR WHITE: Mr. Carroll?
COUNCILMEMBER CARROLL: Thank you, Chair. I think we're on the right track in trying
to correct what our unintended consequences, our favorite saying on this Council, but I'm
concerned about the timeline.
CHAIR WHITE: Uh-huh.
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COUNCILMEMBER CARROLL: You're talking about or we are talking about extending to
January 31t If any action is to be taken before to be implemented before January 31st,
we have a meeting, your meeting, this meeting, on January 7th There are two Council
meetings after that, January 10 th and 24th to which action would have to be taken before
that deadline. And you spoke about possibly deleting those two sections or taking other
actions that the Committee deems appropriate. And so is it your intention, that
January 7th meeting, to try to come to some conclusion and then forego Committee
referral and put it into the Council for two readings or what...
CHAIR WHITE: No.
COIJNCJLMEMBER CARROLL: I just like to know what your schedule is and what your
intention is.
CHAIR WHITE: No, I appreciate the question 'cause I'm sure that there're others that are
wondering the same thing. The purpose of the appeal is to put all those folks that
qualified last year basically into a holding pattern. It gives us.. .no one's gonna have to
pay anything until the August 201h first payment. So January 31st is not a deadline for us
to take action this, on the changes, because they can be implemented once we pass them.
And I will commit to doing that prior to any of these people actually going before the
appeals board. So we don't. . . January 3Vt is not a deadline for us passing something.
January 315t is just the deadline for the applications. And then we will move into
gathering the information from the Department and I will bring that back to the
Committee, we'll make the changes that we feel are appropriate; and then the appeals
will either go away or, if somebody still has an appeal, they can go to the Board. And, to
Mr. Couch's point, we need to give them some flexibility as well.
COUNCILMEMBER CARROLL: Thank you, Chair.
CHAIR WHITE: Uh-huh.

COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Chair?
CHAIR WHITE: Mr. Victorino?
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Thank you. And, you know, I appreciate what you're
trying to do, and I've allowed you this time because you know what I was looking at.
CHAIR WHITE: Uh-huh.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: And I think you've heard the testifiers, and we've all heard
the testifiers. Those were the two main concerns. And I've had people call me and
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saying where, you know, property owned. And you only have this remnant lot, and that
still concerns, because I know of people that have where they've given the children and
put their names of their houses in their children's names and the children have their own
house and they're the homeowners and they're still having a hard time with all of this.
And I know Scott and the Department has been trying to get to these people and
explaining to them. There's a lot of confusion out there. I am hoping that you will be
able to get this at a timely fashion so that we can get this addressed. Because, if nothing
else, I would like to repeal those two items just for the point of protecting many of what I
call our everyday kupunas that have these problems -CHAIR WHITE: Right.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORIMO: --'cause that seems to be the one that has come up time in
and time out. And so, for me, I'll be patient and waiting, Mr. Chair, in giving you this
opportunity so that we can work on it, but we also must be cognizant. If I don't see it
coming in a timely manner, that I'll push forward this and I'll ask you to bring it out so
that at least that two sections will protect the vast majority of the people that have come
to see us.
CHAIR WHITE: Yeah, and I appreciate your making that statement. The Chair's interest is to
make sure that we understand how many people are being impacted by each of the
criteria not just those two. So, you know, the Chair's feeling is that we may, instead of
eliminating the criteria, we may put conditions on it. So that's why we need the
information before we make the decision.
COIJNCILMEMBER VICTOR1NO: Well, I think, also, Mr. Erfer brought in some good points
about the sliding scale, which -CHAIR WHITE: Absolutely.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: --you know, he's talked to me about it, and I will be
bringing out that forward -CHAIR WHITE: Uh-huh.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: --when we bring that up, because I think that may be
another viable way of looking at it -CHAIR WHITE: Right.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTOR1NO: --instead of cutting off. And, like you say, if it's 400,001,
they lose out; where if you have a sliding scale, maybe these people won't be caught in
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that vacuum. Again, we're trying to protect the everyday residents that's lived here. Five
years, I agree, is not a very long time because people can move, can buy another house.
And does that disqualify them if they buy another house? And somebody who's had
seven generations, like the Hokoanas who's been seven generations on that property or
the Vareses who've been there for 25 years. Timeframes are really ambiguous if you ask
me. I mean I'm afraid of timeframes. But some methodology that those people that
owned these properties for multi generations and have, you know, have no intents of
selling it and have all these other legal, like, family. You get ten brothers or ten siblings
who owned this property, one lives here and nine live in the Mainland that have very
little connection to the property; but every time we do something, all ten have to be
advised of change and whatever. So I understand you know the problem like all of us,
but I just want the public to understand that we are really working towards solving this.
And to really, as you put it in many times in your terms, catch the cheaters and protect
those. . . and then make sure they pay their fair share and our residents are not impacted
adversely. Thank you, Mr. Chair.
CHAIR WHITE: Thank you. Ms. Baisa?
COUNCILMEMBER BAlSA: Thank you very much, Chair. I would like to thank you for
trying very hard to deal with this difficult issue that we have before us. You know, it's,
again, one of those things that we did in good faith thinking that we were gonna, you
know, catch cheaters. And I don't think that because we didn't have as much
participation as would've been nice, you know, we passed it and now we know that we
need to fix it.
CHAIR WHITE: Uh-huh.
COUNCILMEMBER BAlSA: And I appreciate your trying to do it and trying to get the
information. I don't want us to hurt the people in the meantime, and so the idea that they
don't have to come up with the cash right away and there's time while we work out the
kinks, is really important to me. I certainly do not want to be a party to hurt anybody
who has family-legacy lands. You know, my own family is in that situation, we've had
lands since the 1800s. And, you know, when you're entrusted with property that's been
handed down to you from. . . in my case, I'm the fifth and you know, we're going into
children and grandchildren and great grandchildren, so this goes on and on. And I have
no intent to want to hurt any of those people. However, we do wanna make sure that, you
know, everybody's paying their fair share. I wanna refer to Mr. Erfer. When I came to
the Council seven years ago, he was at the Real Property Tax Appeals Board. And we
had long conversations about the things that he thought might help; and I'm sad to say
that, seven years later, he's still making those same suggestions. I think that it's time that
we pay attention to what he's saying. You know, with all of his experience in listening to
all of these cases and seeing all of this, he really is an expert. And I would really like him
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to be a part of any changes or planning that we do, because I think that it's important that
we listen to the people that actually have the firsthand knowledge of how this affects
people. And maybe that was a mistake we made when we did what we did. Maybe we
should have thought of bringing him. But, you know, for a while, I think he was kind of
disenchanted because he kept saying it and nobody would listen to him. Well, I'm
delighted that he's back and that he's trying again. Because, you know, try, try again and
you just might succeed. So, anyway, thank you for the stay of execution and let's try and
push this forward in a timely manner. Thank you.
CHAIR WHITE: Yeah, thank you. You know, I, too, feel that Mr. Erfer--... (clears throat)...
excuse me--made a number of very good comments. And, you know, this is just another
reminder of how hard it is to pass tax changes. So the Chair's interest is to try to lower
the emotion and increase the understanding. And, once we do that, I think we'll be in a
much better position. Any further discussion? Mr. Couch?
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Thank you. When you talk about if we allow for this appeal for
the folks that qualified last year and didn't qualify this year, is there anything we can
throw in there to either delay the fee or waive the fee for those folks? Because if they
want to appeal, they have to pay the $75 fee, so is there something we can do, say, maybe
not pay the fee until they actually have the appeal come before that, you know, if they
have to appeal?
CHAIR WHITE: That's a good question. Director Agsalog, when is the fee paid, when it comes
before the Board or upon filing?
MR. AGSALOG: Upon filing of the application to appeal.
CHAIR WHITE: And do you have the ability to waive that fee, administratively?
MR. AGSALOG: I do not, Mr. Chair. They have to pay that, and our Board of Review start
reviewing those appeals starting in June and the first half has to be paid, also, in August.
You know, if their appeals is not heard by then and we have not made any resolution,
they still have to pay the first bill.
CHAIR WHITE: Okay. The Chair has a question as to whether we can easily amend this,
because the intent is to defer this so that it can be discharged. So let's take a quick
recess. . . . (gavel)...
RECESS: 11:27 a.m.
RECONVENE: 11:51 a.m.
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CHAIR WHITE: . . (gavel). . . Budget and Finance Committee will come back to order. The
recess was a little longer than I anticipated. In a side discussion with Mr. Agsalog, he
came up with, I think, a very good solution. When we went into recess, it was to discuss
whether or not we could waive the fees on an appeal. There were differing opinions on
whether we can waive the fee. And, anyway, Mr. Agsalog's solution is that he feels that
since the first payment isn't due until August, he will collect all applications and hold on
to them until after we have passed the changes, and then he'll consider those applications
based on whatever criteria we finally end up passing. And I will commit to doing
something before we get into Budget. And if we simply can't get it out before Budget,
then we'll take it up right after Budget. But we will certainly be done before August to
give him time to deal with that. So, with that, I will.. .Mr. Agsalog, did I state it
correctly?
MR. AGSALOG: Yes, Mr. Chair. And, like I said, it gives the taxpayers to be able to go to IRS
and file zero amended return and get a transcript. And also, at the time, for you to craft a
legislation that I will base those evaluation upon and ensure that it will be retroactive to
this coming tax year.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Mr. Chair?
CHAIR WHITE: Mr. Victorino?
COUNCILMEMBER VICTOR1NO: Yeah, thank you. And I'm thankful that we're coming to
some means of protecting these people. Thank you very, very much. I think this is a
good compromise. But we're also talking about doing a letter. I think Mr. Agsalog
mentioned something about doing a letter, you know, to these people, letting them know
what's happening.
CHAIR WHITE: Correct.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: I would also request, on that letter, some kind of
questionnaire or some kind of area where you, Mr. Agsalog or the Finance Department or
Real Property, whoever the one is addressing the letter to these people, to these
individuals, what are your concerns and, number one, if you haven't filed, why haven't
you filed and, number two, if there's a question on qualification, what is the question?
Because the confusion out there is because of lot of the changes. So maybe if they would
say, well, I don't know if I qualify here, I don't know if I qualify here, then we can get
very specific on that, you know, through Mr. Agsalog, he can collect that information, get
it to us so when we're sitting down, we're working on what I call knowledgeable,
firsthand information.
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CHAIR WHITE: No, I think that's an excellent idea and I would, as you were starting to talk
about the letter, I was reminded that one of the items that was brought up by
Mr. Agsalog's staff was that--and I may not be correct in this--but my recollection was
that the Office of Aging was also providing assistance to people who were stuck in this
application process. So I think that would probably be another thing that should go out in
the letter that there are places where they can go for assistance.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Yeah, I agree with you, just so long it's, you know, these
are the people that we know are most affected by, that's the impact group -CHAIR WHITE: Right.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: --we're talking about, so we're targeting this group. Now,
there may be others that wanna get in and fine just, you know, they're more than happy,
right, call Mr. Agsalog's office and they'll be able to help 'em, right Mr. Agsalog?
MR. AGSALOG: Definitely, Mr. Chair. I have been fielding some of those questions. I have
told my staff to just give 'em my number in my office. And I have talked to them; that's
why I know that a lot of them have not filed IRS revenue taxes. And I keep telling them,
you should go and file and amend the return and just put zero, you know, or call
someone. But, again, you're right, Mr. Chair and Mr. Victorino, that the Human
Concerns have helped some of them to bring into our office because of the cumbersome
application process that we have put them through. Also, in my discussion with
taxpayers, you know, I can see the pride, you know, the dignity that they want to have
that they can still do it, they are independent. And, sometimes, I think it's just kinda
difficult for them to run to the IRS office where we don't have no parking and all that
stuff, and it frustrates them. And it's the frustration that really takes a toll on the seniors
that we serve for this particular benefit. And I say, benefits for them, and some of them
they don't want their children to be paying for them, you know, they still want to do it on
their own, you know, that type of thing; and I heard that. And I think if we can do
something, Mr. Chair, as I have mentioned to you, I will need a little money to actuate
this. I wanna send it to them registered return receipt so that they cannot say, we weren't
informed. That may be about $5 a piece, so I'm looking about 800 to send, so close to
about $4,000. And, as I told you earlier, I'm already running low on my budget, so I
hope that you will help me out.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTOR1NO: You got that, Mr. Chair?
CHAIR WHITE: Yeah, but he's not running low on money right now.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTOR1NO: Yeah, right.
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CHAIR WHITE: Just looking at the end of the year.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTOR1NO: And, Mr. Chair, just so that the people understand, you
know, from your side, if you would let, you know, today, tell those people, tell those
circuit breaker recipients that this will guarantee them, at least for now, some time. They
won't have to be running out and getting new, you know, worry about paying much,
much higher prices in their taxes for right now until we work it out, until the Department
and us get the format and the policies and whatever else needs to be sent. And, that time,
they can see and understand the total package that we've brought forward.
CHAIR WHITE: Right.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTOR1NO: And so that they understand we're here to be protectors of
their future not like we were called earlier, something else, and we won't go there.
CHAIR WHITE: I think it would also be good if we could maybe ask the question, if you are a
senior, do you need assistance with organizing the tax applications or something of that
sort?
COUNCILMEMBER VICTOR1NO: Yeah.
MR. AGSALOG: We can do that Mr. Chair. Yeah, definitely we can do that. And I have
already been convincing the Budget Director here to talk to the Mayor that we can even
probably try to dedicate someone to help the seniors if need be.
CHAIR WHITE: Thank you. Mr. Couch?
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Thank you, Mr. Chair. Now, this letter that's going out to
people, it's the people who got exemptions last year -CHAIR WHITE: Right.
COIJNCILMEMBER COUCH: --is that correct? And then you're going to let them know that
to please file even though you came and stood in the line and said, I don't qualify, to file
anyway? 'Cause you're gonna ask them come back and refile, is that how it's gonna
work?
MR. AGSALOG: That's exactly what I told the Chair earlier that for them to put their
application, complete or not, and then we'll work with them. More simpler, yes.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Whether or not they think they qualify?
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MR. AGSALOG: Yes.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Okay.
MR. AGSALOG: Because it buys...
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: You gotta be stressful of that to say.. .'cause if they are already
in their minds that I don't qualify so I don't need to do this, say, no, please file, if you
filed last year, file again this year.
MR. AGSALOG: That's right.
COUNCJLMEMBER COUCH: Okay.
MR. AGSALOG: And we can put it in a bold letter, italics, however to catch their attention -COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Okay.
MR. AGSALOG: --and we'll work with them. And I hope that this body will give us an
ordinance that we can use to evaluate the applications, complete or not.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Okay. Thank you, Chair. That's why I just wanna make sure it
can happen.
CHAIR WHITE: Okay. And just one question, how do you see this impacting certification of
funds for the Budget?
MR. AGSALOG: It will probably be a guesstimate, Mr. Chair. Based on last year's one, so that
we will look at it, I will discuss this with the Budget Director here and how he would
allocate that 1.2 credits last year, so I will see. The one that we already know, we can,
but the rest of them that's not evaluated because of the certain strict restrictions, we will
not know.
CHAIR WHITE: Okay.
MR. AGSALOG: But we can do an estimate.
CHAIR WHITE: Any further discussion, Members? Again, this item is going to be deferred
6th meeting. So, with the discussion today,
because it's on the agenda for our December
the Chair will have Staff work on an amendment to take out the appeal process. So as
long as we're all understanding that we're taking out the appeal process because they're
going to hold on to all the applications until after we readjust the ordinance. Mr. Couch?
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COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: That's the No. E on Section 1, is that the one you're talking
about?
CHAIR WHITE: If it says, appeal, it is. You're making me put my glasses on. Oh, I've got the
wrong bill here. Read to me what you've got there.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: 3.48.605, Grounds - Real property taxes. In the case of a real
property tax appeal, no taxpayer shall be deemed aggrieved by an assessment, nor shall
an assessment be lowered or an exemption be allowed, unless there is shown:
E. Received the circuit breaker tax credit for the tax year ending June 30, 2014, but
failed to qualify for the tax year ending June 30, 2015. Is that the section you wanna
take.. .that we're gonna remove?
CHAIR WHITE: Yeah, we will likely remove that as well as the item in C, which
reads. . . C reads, denial of the exemption to which the taxpayer is entitled and for which
the taxpayer has qualified.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: That's already existing in the Code.
CHAIR WHITE: No, he.. .well, oh, no, that's right, we're changing that because it said, "he".
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Yeah.
CHAIR WHITE: So no, that one would stay.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Okay.
CHAIR WHITE: So just E.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Okay. Thank you.
CHAIR WHITE: Okay. Any further discussion, Members? Seeing none, the Chair
recommends deferral on this item.
COUNCIL MEMBERS: No objections.
ACTION: DEFER pending further discussion.

CHAIR WHITE: And with that, Members, we go to our next item. And don't worry, I'm gonna
let you get out for lunch. This is BF-30, the West Maui Land Acquisition. And we have
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received, in the last week, two appraisals, and we'll pass out the appraisals now. And the
Chair's feeling is that I'll give you. . . both appraisals are quite long and, well, one is quite
a bit longer than the other; so rather than coming back at 1:30, the Chair would allow you
to come back at 2:00 so that you have time for lunch and time to review the appraisals.
Any concerns with the timeframe?
COUNCIL MEMBERS: No objections.
CHAIR WHITE: Okay. With that, the Committee will stand in recess until 2:00 p.m.
(gavel)...

RECESS: 12:05 p.m.
RECONVENE: 2:03 p.m.

ITEM NO. 30: WEST MAUI LAND ACQUISITION (REAL PROPERTY
AT LAUNIUPOKO, MAUI) (CC 13-202)
CHAIR WHITE: . . . (gavel). . . The Budget and Finance Committee will come back to order.
And, Members, we are moving on to the last item of the day, BF-30, which is the West
Maui Land Acquisition (Real Property at Launiupoko, Maui). And we have joining us
again, Sandy Baz, our Budget Director; Danny Agsalog, our Finance Director; and
Jeff Ueoka. The Committee is in receipt of County Communication 13-202, from the
Budget Director, relating to proposed amendments regarding the Fiscal Year 2014
Budget as it pertains to acquisition of approximately 186 acres at Launiupoko, Maui. We
also have correspondence dated November 26, 2013, from the Chair of the Committee,
transmitting the following: first, a proposed resolution entitled, Authorizing Proceedings
in Eminent Domain for the Acquisition of Approximately 186 Acres at Launiupoko,
Maui, Hawaii (Tax Map Keys (2) 4-7-001:030 and (2) 4-7-001:026 (a portion of that
lot)), to Preserve Open Space and Expand Public Parks; and, secondly, a proposed
resolution entitled, Authorizing Proceedings in Eminent Domain for the Acquisition of
Approximately 70.5 Acres at Launiupoko, Maui, Hawaii (Tax Map Keys (2) 4-7-001:030
and (2) 4-7-001:026), to Preserve Open Space and Expand Public Parks; and, thirdly, a
proposed resolution, Authorizing the Council Chair to Contract for an Appraisal of
Approximately 70.5 Acres at Launiupoko, Maui, Hawaii (Tax Map Keys (2) 4-7-001:030
and (2) 4-7-001:026. And the Chair's intention for scheduling these is, I had no idea at
the time of posting whether or not or where the prices would come in with the appraisals
that we've just received in the last four days. And, as the Chair has stated before, if the
appraisals came in close to the price of $13 million that we had been presented, I think
the Committee would be very comfortable moving ahead with the purchase as proposed.
But, as we've discussed in earlier meetings, the initial appraisal that was provided to us
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with the proposal to purchase the lands was flawed. And I want to thank the Committee
for authorizing us to get a reappraisal by ACM Consulting and an additional appraisal
done by The Hallstrom Group in Honolulu. Those appraisals were passed out at the end
of our morning session, and I hope that all of you had a chance to look through them and
digest them a bit. The initial appraisal from ACM in 2012 in November amounted to
$13 million. The appraisal that we have just received--done in similar fashion but not
exactly the same fashion--from ACM Consulting, received I believe on Friday, was
$9.4 million. And the appraisal that we received late yesterday from The Hallstrom
Group was an appraised value of 6,660,000. So significant difference between the three
appraisals. And since you all probably wouldn't have enough time to make a lot of sense
of this, I put together two sheets that I'll pass out now. And the purpose of the handout is
to give you a side-by-side summary of the major elements of the three appraisals, and that
is the sheet labeled, Launiupoko Appraisal Comparisons. And the other handout is a
comparison of ACM's three appraisals: the first, that was done in October 2012; the
second, in November of 2012; and then the third in November of this year. I'll wait till
you all have your copies. ... (Short pause)... The ACM Variations on Values of
Lots 8 and 12, I've attached the valuation and methodology from each of those appraisals
for your review, and that's the attached documents. But I think it's important to point out
that in the October 12th appraisal, the valuation given to the two non-developable lots that
run along the bottom of the properties, the valuation given in October of 2012 was
1,523,000, which is at the bottom of the page. And then, in November, that number was
adjusted to 5,872,000. And then, in the most recent appraisal, that number dropped to
3,610,000. And I've shared with you on the handout so that you can see where the
changes and adjustments took place. In the October 2012 valuation, actually in all of the
valuations, the location increase was steady at 25 percent; and, for the view amenity, that
only showed up this year at a positive 13 percent. And then the major differential is in
physical characteristics, and I'm not sure what the terminology is that's being used here,
but it's a deduction of 90 percent of the value, so my guess is that that's probably more
due to easements than some other reason. Then if you look across to the November 13th,
they've added a new element or new adjustment called, Easements and Restrictions. And
they identify in the.. .you'll see on the first page of the attached documents, that plans for
the 37.7-acre portion of Lot 26 and the 32.7-acre portion of the 148-acre lot are to restrict
structural development. This would eliminate agricultural structures including those for
rural and residential use. So my sense is that that is the reason for this reduction of
13th, but I would also guess that the physical characteristics
50 percent in the November
were also a reduction due to the fact that they termed it as open space and park use only
12th analysis. The reason I've focused on the two
in their October 12th and November
non-developable lots is that that is a significant portion of the difference in all three of
these ACM appraisals and it is also a... where there's a significant difference between the
Halistrom appraisal and the ACM appraisal that we just received, the two that we just
received. If you go to the next item, you'll note at the bottom, Valuation of
Lots 8 and 12, in the initial appraisal that we received, the appraised value was
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$13 million; of that, 5.8- was due to the valuation of the two non-developable lots. Same
goes for the second column where that's, again, an ACM appraisal. And then the third
column, the 1,762- reflects the valuation that is given to those lots by the Flalistrom
appraisal. And the Hallstrom appraisal has taken a very different approach to the
valuation. Basically, on the three ACM appraisals, they were using developable parcels
as the basis for coming up with a value with which to start. And then they made
adjustments from there, and those are the adjustments that you see here in the column of
percentages. With the Hallstrom appraisal, the approach took into consideration the same
criteria, that there were no structures allowed on these parcels, but that it still had a value
because it could be leased out for agricultural use. So Hallstrom secured examples of
agricultural lease rents and took the average of the agricultural lease rents that they found
on Oahu and on Maui and then capitalized the value of those lease rents. And there's
much more detail in the appraisal. So the numbers relating to the non-developable lots
are the main differential between the two appraisals. There's also a differential in the
individual lot values. So on the Launiupoko Appraisal Comparisons, you'll notice that
the lots in the 2012 appraisal are a bit lower than the 2013 appraisal, but the resulting
number that they come up with is only about $700,000 off because they've increased the
value of the seven lots, which is probably appropriate with the increases in the
marketplace, and then they've decreased the value of the two non-developable lots. So, if
you go down to the.. .well, you have the adjusted cash flow and then you have the
deductions. And the deductions from the price of the retail price in the November 12th
appraisal amount to $3.2 million. The deductions in the 2013 appraisal from ACM
increase those deductions by a little over $4 million to 7,600,000. And the Hallstrom
appraisal has the same, or very close to the same, number at $7.3 million for deductions;
and those deductions amount to the allocation for profit, the allocation for construction,
fees, marketing expenses, discounting the monies to present value and so forth. So then
the next line down shows the valuation of the subdivision subtotal, which in the 2012
appraisal is 13 million, 2013 is 9.4 million and, for Hallstrom's, the subdivision portion
of the valuation is 4.9 million. And then, on the Hallstrom appraisal, they add the two
non-developable lots after the subdivision calculations, so that brings it to the total of
6.6 million versus the 9.4- from ACM. Oop, somebody forgot to turn off their noise
maker. And, you know, it's the Chair's feeling that we have a ... with these numbers, I
think we have a very important task to keep doing in Committee. I have put forth the
items for consideration today. Obviously, I don't have any intention of taking action on
any of the items today, but I wanted to at least put the idea out there of condemnation in
case the valuations came in significantly lower. I don't intend to take any action because
I think these are ideas that we should only consider if the negotiations can't reopen and
come to a different conclusion than the $13 million. I think these numbers give the
Mayor a reason to reconsider the $13 million price tag. I realize that it's been made very
clear that the owners won't accept anything lower than $13 million and that they could
well walk away. The Chair's intent is to secure these properties whether through a
negotiated agreement or through condemnation, because I agree with the intent that the
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Mayor has, I agree with his vision. I just have a little bit of difficulty agreeing that we
should put up $13 million for this purchase at this time. The other thing that we should
be considering in looking at our options, and this is, you know, we need to evaluate
options. If the Mayor has not included the 11 developable lots on the 214-acre parcel,
then that brings up the question, if we're not interested in preserving the larger part of
this original 363 acres, then is it critical for us to have the 116 acres that make up the
other seven lots? I bring that up because this is a cost item, and I think we need to, as we
do our fiduciary duty, we need to be evaluating whether it's okay for us to allow the
Ukumehame side to be treated the same as the Lahaina side. And instead of spending the
money on buying the property, spend the money on making sure that we really do a good
job of buffing out the area along the ocean, which is certainly gonna be the most utilized.
I'm guessing that part of the reason.. .there's probably two reasons why the Mayor chose
not to include the 11 developable lots, and the first is probably because of the cost. It
makes up 60 percent of the $24 million appraised value that was shared earlier with the
seven lots and the two non-developable lots making up the remaining 40 percent, actually
39 percent; so that's probably one of the reasons he didn't wanna do it. The other is
likely because, at the current zoning, only two structures, two house structures can be
built on those properties. So I don't know about you all, but if I'm driving by and you've
got two structures over 15 acres, that's reasonably open space. And the question on the
Ukumehame side is, do we need to spend $13 million to block the construction of
14 homes? And that's just something that we need to consider. So I have put up
condemnation bills for both the 186 and the 70 for future consideration if necessary. I do
feel very strongly that we have enough information now for the Mayor to go back and
reopen negotiations with the goal of securing these lands and with the understanding that
we not only have a $6.6 million valuation, but we also have a 9.4-, which if you adjust
the non-developable lands valuation to the same as Hallstrom's method, the price tag
would be somewhere in the neighborhood of 7.8 million. With those two numbers, in
conjunction with the knowledge that the owners in agreeing back in 2006 to sell the full
363 for 21.5 million, in doing so, they essentially agreed to selling the 186 for
approximately $8.4 million. So if they were agreeable to pay... or to sell it for
$8.4 million in 2006 when prices were about 40 percent higher than they are now, then
would they be willing to sell it for the same thing now? I don't know, but I think it's
important for the Mayor to reopen negotiations and see what's possible. As Chair, I feel
that it's inappropriate for us to consider the discharge from this Committee at this point,
because there's a lot more work to be done. If we're going to move forward with any
kind of condemnation, we need to have people come in here and talk about condemnation
so that we understand the pros and cons of that action. And we need to have the
appraisers come in and help us understand the methodology and also listen to the sellers
because I'm sure they've got their own feelings of value. So, with that, I'm happy to
open it up for comments or questions if you have any on the appraisals. Ms. Baisa?
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COUNCILMEMBER BAlSA: I might as well jump in. Thank you for all of that introductory
information, Chair. There's a lot to digest. And, like you know, we haven't had a whole
lot of time to look at the appraisals since we got them.
CHAIR WHITE: Before you go on, I'm sorry, I've totally forgot to, first, thank the Committee
for passing the resolutions to get the additional appraisals; but I mostly want to thank you
and your staff downstairs for expeditiously getting these to us, and I really appreciate
them coming in in a timely fashion. I would have rather had them about a month ago, but
I'm very happy that you jumped right on it and got them both initiated and delivered, I
appreciate that.
COUNCILMEMBER BAlSA: Thank you very much, Chair. I can thank my staff. I know that
it put a lot of stress on them, and I kept harassing them, when are we gonna get it, when
are we gonna get it? In fact, I did call one of the appraisers myself and said, can you
hurry up? So, anyway, we're here today with what we have. But, you know, I listened
very carefully to what you've said and I think all of us are kind of sitting here trying to
sift all this and figure out, where do we go from here?
CHAIR WHITE: Uh-huh.
COUNCILMEMBER BAlSA: But I heard you say several times, 1 think that Mayor should
reopen negotiations. Would it be appropriate, is there a representative from the seller
who might be willing to address that question? Because we have been told over and over
and we have it in writing that that's not an issue for them, it's either take it or leave it. I
don't know how you wanna handle that.
CHAIR WHITE: I think we've heard that enough.
COUNCILMEMBER BAlSA: You think they're still at that position based on what we have in
front of us today, which is a totally different thing?
CHAIR WHITE: If somebody would like to come down and address that, I'd be happy to allow
that? Mr. Goodfellow?
MR. GOODFELLOW: Thank you, all, Chair White. Hello, everyone. I guess, you know, what
a process. I'm as confused as, I'm sure, many of you are. Never had I thought I would
learn so much about appraisals. And I guess I don't even know what I've learned about
appraisals except that we have numbers that are in appraisals that range anywhere from
hundreds of thousands of dollars an acre. You know, the Pali to Puamana plan was
380,000 an acre. We have the flood-control issue that's going on that we have an
appraisal on that, that appraisal is for $275,000 an acre. We have the ACM appraisal
which was the $13,070,000 an acre [sic] appraisal. We now have a Hallstrom appraisal
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that says $35,000 an acre. It's amazing how you can go out and get all these different
appraisals and come up with so many different answers. But, having said that, you know,
we just, as you all, just saw this morning this latest appraisal. As Chair White indicated,
one of the big differences is, how do you value this "open space"? And that was never
open space when we bought this land; that was agriculture land and, the community plan,
it's still agricultural land. We've been working with the Administration and with the
County for 12 years trying to accommodate a park, and so we drew our lines so that we
could accommodate a park. The highest and best use of this land would be to run those
property lines right down to the road and people would have their front yards and they
could walk across the street to the beach. Under the, kind of, the methodology that's
being used here, I think you could go to Spreckelsville, you could go to Keawekapu
Beach, you can say all those homes are set back 100 or 200 feet from the ocean, all that
land that's in front of your house that you used to call a yard is open space, you can't
build on it, it's unbuildable; and, therefore, we're gonna put a value of virtually nothing
on it and we're gonna put a County park on it. And, you know, I love County parks.
We're the ones that started this whole concept of a County park.
CHAIR WHITE: Uh-huh.
MR. GOODFELLOW: But, at the same time, I think we all know that, along with the good that
comes from a park, there's problems that come from a park as well. And to take away
somebody's front yard and turn it over to the County and have that become.. .first of all,
when will it become a park because there's no money to build a park, does it become like
Ukumehame where it's an overgrown forest with homeless people living in it, how does
that affect all the rest of our values? And, for those reasons, there's people in our
partnership.. .and I won't mention a name, but at one point there was a quote from one of
our partners to Mike Foley the then Planning Director who said, I wouldn't sell this
property for a billion dollars to the County because they'll ruin it. So I'm one member of
a partnership, and it's a group of people that love Maui and it's a group of people that
would love to see this park happen. We have valuations all over the board. As
Chair White said, this latest Halistrom appraisal was looking at this open space, which
they say has negligible value; we say it's worth $500 an acre a year in rent, and then
we're gonna capitalize that. We have a proposal, in hand already, from a solar company
saying that they will pay us $120,000 a year for the use of 30 of those acres. So instead
of $500 a year, we get a $120,000 for less than half of that land, a year. So what happens
is, is that all of these appraisals are based on assumptions. And it just is in the beginning
when the first draft appraisal came out at $8.7 million from ACM, and we looked at it
and we said, well that's crazy. You know, we know what we can sell lots for. We sell a
lot for $2'/2 million, you know. Why in the world would we sell this entire piece for that
amount of money? And we wrote a letter, and I believe each of you have a copy of the
letter that we sent to the Administration. We said, hey guys, you know, that's crazy, you
know, this land's worth far more money than that. This is 2'/2 miles of coastline right
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next to Lahaina. And we gave them our rationale, the Mayor gave that to the appraiser,
the appraiser went back out and came back with a $13 million appraisal and we agreed to
it and that's been on the table, now, for over a year and it's been in this Committee for
almost a year. Our partnership is just, as this Council is, a group of individuals. Many of
them, this is their largest single asset, it is their only asset. And it's very important to
them that we be compensated, at least, to a reasonable degree for what it's worth. If we
take the appraisal on the flood-control project, which you also have copies of, that's
$275,000 an acre. Along the suggestion that Chair White had today, let's just take the
70 acres of coastal land. Take 70 acres times $275,000 an acre and you're gonna spend
18 to 20 million dollars for only 70 acres of land instead of 13 million for the whole
186 acres of land. Now, are we gonna win in that suit? I don't know. That portion is not
covered by the appraisal that I saw today, the 6.6 million, they left that land out and said
that's gonna be taken care of in court. But the problem with court is, you know, a jury
can say anything. I mean, ultimately, a jury is gonna look.. .and we'll go back, we'll get
an appraisal, we'll look at what the highest and best use is of all of this land, we'll look at
photovoltaic, we will look at all of the different options we have, we can look at running
those property lines right down to the road again as we originally planned and we can
come up with a value that I think this Council is gonna feel is extremely high; and it's
gonna make it probably even more difficult to reach an agreement. However, that
certainly is an option of this group is to go the way of litigation and a taking. I will say
this, just from my perspective, that's very bad policy. I think Dale Bonar alluded to it.
You know, we've worked with the Maui Coastal Land Trust, the Nature Conservancy, a
lot of groups that are very concerned about saving land on Maui and all the islands; and
we've always worked with trust and we've worked together, we've come up with
win-win solutions. We designed our whole subdivision here to try to accommodate this
park; and to come back now and say, well, because we put in open space so that we could
accommodate the park, we're now gonna put little or no value on it. You know, that
sends a message to every landowner here and it sends a message to anybody in private
business that wants to work together, collaboratively, with the Council and with the
Mayor. So I think condemnation is not a good alternative, I think it's the wrong thing to
do and I think it opens this Budget and Finance Committee up to a lot of potential fiscal
issues because I think the appraisal could come in far, far higher. Certainly, as a
partnership, I will go back and recommend to the partners that we continue to gather
information. We may do our own appraisal. We've never done one yet, we've relied on
the Mayor and we've relied on everybody else to do an appraisal. I will say this, as a
landowner, all of these appraisals are looking at our seven lots as if it's a third-party
development. And they're saying, well, for a third party to go in and buy this land and
develop it, you know, they will expect certain types of returns and we're gonna factor in
certain types of discounts. We own the land, we already own it, you know, all we have to
do is $3 million worth of improvements and we can sell lots. And so to say, we're gonna
take off your profit and we're gonna discount your values, you know, well, we don't have
to discount our profit, we don't have to discount our values, that's our land. All we have
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to do is put in a $3 million road and we can sell lots. So a lot of the...! guess what I'm
finding is, in all these appraisals, it really boils down to methodology and assumptions.
They used third parties, they used arbitrary rental rates for ag land that we could do ten
times more. This is why, I guess, when the original 8.7 million appraisal came in, the
other thing the Mayor did is, he said, look, I want an access road, so we agreed to build a
$3 million access road; I want water, we agreed to give the County water. You know, it
isn't just the land, we agreed to other things to make this work and none of those things
are in here. You condemn it, do I have to build a road, do I have to give you water? I
mean there's a lot of questions here that are being raised that all have value. This is... I
mean to me, today, for $13 million, you can buy 186 acres. Will we go back and talk to
the Mayor again? Absolutely. Will we go out and get our own appraisal? Absolutely.
Can I assure you that we'll come in here at less than 13 million? Absolutely not. Can I
say that we would come in at any particular number? I can't. Can I tell you today that I
could convince all of our partners that we wanna continue to work with the County and
the Council to make this happen? I can't do that, okay. Those are all things I'll try to do
and those are all things that we will go back and discuss. But we have basically been
waiting for 12 months for this Committee to tell us, are you gonna buy the land, are
gonna approve the Mayor's suggestion that we buy this land and honor the contract for
$13 million or not? And that's kind of where we still sit. So, as soon as we get an
answer to that question, then we will get together and we will certainly try to come up
with an answer so that I can give you a straight answer instead of saying, I don't know.
COTJNCILMEMBER BAlSA: Mr. Chair? Thank you very much, Mr. Goodfellow, for your
honest, you know, answering of the question. It's really important to us. And thank you
for being willing to work with us. I know that Maui means a lot to you, and I personally
wanna thank you for all that Goodfellow does for the County of Maui. Thank you.
MR. GOODFELLOW: Thank you very much.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Mr. Chair?
CHAIR WHITE: I think we all join you in that sentiment.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Mr. Chair?
CHAIR WHITE: Mr. Victorino?
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Thank you. And thank you, Mr. Goodfellow, again, on
behalf of the people of Maui County and the candid answer you gave us. I mean I think
that's very, very important. And I agree with you, we could get five more appraisals and
be all over the map with appraisals. So and some used bulk agricultural setup, bulk lots,
others used individual. I mean, you know, you can take it for what it's worth. And I
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wish the public could see all of this and I hope this becomes puts online so that people
and a layperson like myself trying to understand what all this means is very
mindboggling, you know. I mean you, Mr. Chair, may have a better understanding, but I
look at all this and how the methodologies they come around each one and is like, whoa,
you know, it's mindboggling. But I wanna say that I'm thankful for that last part about
you'll still try, I'm thankful for that. I'm not asking you to go less than 3 million, I not
asking you to cut this, cut that, but you said, you'll still try. Because I've said this many
times, I'm gonna put this on record one more time, I don't care what anybody else says,
this land is priceless. It's in an area which has cultural as well as recreational
significance, okay. We just bought 200-and-something acres at Launiupoko for. . . oh, not
Launiupoko, Lipoa Point in Honolua for 20 million, okay. So, you know, we not, you
know, and it wasn't us, actually, it was State money, but it's our money.
CHAIR WHITE: Yeah, it actually hasn't happened, yet.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Yeah, but I mean it's in the process. But I mean, you
know, that's the price that was set for the 200-and-da-da-da acres, right. I forget, 214 or
whatever it might've been.
CHAIR WHITE: Two hundred and seventy.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTOR1NO: Oh, 270, okay, for 20 million, Mr. Chair -CHAIR WHITE: Uh-huh.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: --you know. Developable land? Yeah. But really, for the
people out in West Maui who put my picture and I never wanna forget that. I'm still on
the telephone poles, but that's okay, I can handle that. At least they know what I look
like, as handsome as I am. I had to put that in, I don't want that left out. Bottom line is,
we are going to buy 270 acres for 20 million. Here's 186 acres which has
(inaudible).., as a significant purchase as anyplace else and I still think it's worth the
13 million and the priceless. Appraisals can go anywhere, but it is still priceless. We
didn't do it in Palauea, we didn't do it in other places. And then when we ended up
buying whatever we got, we paid way more for a heck of a lot less; that's fact, that's
history, look back, there's nothing. Not against you, Mr. Chair. You know, we've been
friends for a long time and I will always speak my mind no matter who's up there, but
that's the facts. And we keep repeating the same mistake. We seem to wanna, you
know, and you've done your due diligence and we agreed to do it, so we got to see some
other numbers. And, again, if we went out for some more appraisals, we may see some
other numbers. Who knows? And you do your appraisal, like you say, you're doing the
flood-control parcels at 200 and something, that came out 19.57 million, I did it quickly
on my calculator, you know, so that's 19 million in litigation. And if we go
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condemnation, Mr. Chair, that's a lot of litigation. And will we get what we deserve?
Will it cost us more, cost us less? If history's been a lesson, if history's been something
we live with and we can understand and know, then I think we going end up paying more
somewhere along the line and when you put everything in totality. So I'm thankful for
this, I agreed to it, so I got to see it, the public gets to see it, I got no qualms. I still say
this 186 acres is priceless, priceless because we'll not always have these opportunities.
And I mean I know you agree with that and most people in this room agree with that. It's
a matter of what our fiduciary duty is. Mayor, go back and check, go back and
renegotiate, go back and do something more, that's fine with me, too. But if they say, no,
and we go to condemnation and we end up paying more in totality when you talking legal
and other costs, I don't know if I wanna explain that to the public in general, I don't
wanna have to explain that. I think they've seen the results of us holding back, buying
what we could've had at this price and waiting till a later date and paying a lot more for a
lot less, and it's happened time in and time out. I just hope this is not another example of
that. Thank you, Mr. Chair. And thank you, Mr. Goodfellow, for everything you do.
This is one of those people that doesn't only talk about doing what is good for the
community, he walks that walk. Whenever we had brushfires and other things, his trucks
are out there helping our Fire Department fight brush fires, and on and on, and
bulldozers, you name it. This is one of those people that has been a part of this
community in a broad sense, and that's why I'm honored to work with him. And that's
why this is so important, 'cause it's not just somebody from the Mainland or someplace
from China or Korea or whatever and, you know, just wanna buy land and then you
wanna turn around and flip it and make a big profit. These are people that are given and
given many times over back to this community. Thank you, Mr. Chair.
CHAIR WHITE: You're absolutely right, Mr. Victorino. Other comments, Members?
Mr. Guzman?
COUNCILMEMBER GUZMAN: Thank you, Chair. I also would like to echo my colleague's
sentiments in terms of...
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: ... (Inaudible)...
CHAIR WHITE: Can we...
COUNCILMEMBER GUZMAN: Yes I'm...
CHAIR WHITE: Do you have questions for him or can he sit down?
COUNCILMEMBER GUZMAN: Okay. That's fine, I was gonna make a statement.
CHAIR WHITE: No, go ahead.
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COUNCILMEMBER GUZMAN: I can reserve that since my colleague to my left had a quite a
long statement.
CHAIR WHITE: No, go ahead and say it. I...
COUNCILMEMBER GUZMAN: But anyways, Chair, I just wanted to make a comment to
Mr. Goodfellow. I believe that you and your partners have been great contributors to our
community and I know you have Maui in your heart. You, day in day out, week after
week show that to the County of Maui. And for you to be sincere and in good faith go
back to the partners with a request to open renegotiations really says a lot to yourself as
well as to your partners. I'll state it again, as I did before in the previous meetings is that
I could've predicted this situation, and I plea again to the Mayor and their Administration
to come back to the table with these new numbers. What may come of the negotiations?
It may stay at 13 million, but give us one. . . try one more time, because if you look at it in
a court case, if there's new evidence that's presented, there's always a time to try to go
back and negotiate a settlement. And, in this case, if we have good faith on both sides,
the Administration as well as the sellers. Give it one last chance. And if it doesn't
happen, if it stays at 13 million, then at least we tried one more time. Thank you so
much, Mr. Goodfellow.
CHAIR WHITE: Thank you, Mr. Guzman. Members, other comments, questions? Mr. Couch?
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: I have a question for Mr. Goodfellow. Mr. Goodfellow, I just
wanna reiterate, I want you to make it clear in my mind. You're okay with taking it back
to your group, but what you're not okay is, is they're gonna say, you know, forget you,
County, we're gonna sell it out or are you okay with them saying, yeah, they'll probably
renegotiate?
MR. GOODFELLOW: I have no clue. 1 honestly don't. This process has been trying on each
of you; it has been extremely trying on the partnership. This deal that was made for
$13 million was supposed to close in March of this year, okay. Originally, our original
deal, was supposed to close in December of last year. We've maintained that price for a
year. There's never been any interest, there's never been any.. .we've done the carrying
costs, you know, we've financed all of this year while it's been in this Committee.
There's no question. And even the appraisals say that real estate land values have gone
up an average of 13 percent a year in the Lahaina side, and that's in the appraisals that we
just got from Halistrom and ACM, so land values are going up. You know, I love the
park, okay. I've been, from day one, the proponent of making this happen, so certainly
you can know that that's where my heart is and I wanna try to make this happen every
way I can. I think a lots going to depend upon. . .1 think the partnership has no choice at
this time, but to go out and get an independent appraisal. I think from what we've seen,
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these appraisals so far are so far apart that, you know, we need to be able to sit with an
appraiser ourselves and say, help us come up with what is a fair valuation, particularly
this open space. I mean this open space is right across the street, you know, from the
shoreline, this is valuable property, you know. And to say that it has, you know, a very
negligible value is very, very difficult for us to swallow, okay, that is property right
across the street from the ocean. And to say that the entire seven-lot subdivision is only
worth $4.9 million when we can sell lots for 2.5 million and there are seven of them
sitting there is very difficult. I think we need our own appraisal. Once we get that
appraisal, we'll have a better idea of what the partners feel comfortable with negotiating
with the County. Because, right now, we have so many numbers floating around that I
can't even tell them, you know, what I think is a reasonable number. I'll tell you what I
think, I still believe, 70,000 an acre is a bargain, that's what I think: but I'm not an
appraiser. So we'll.. .and because it isn't just the land, it's the road and it's water and it's
other things that are going along with that that we agreed to in our negotiations with the
Mayor. And I've gotta share to the Council, believe me, the Mayor was not easy to
negotiate, or his staff, you know. The Finance Director, everybody was there; they're
beating you down just as each of you would do the best you could to take care of County
funds. The Mayor was doing the same, and that's why he kept asking for a little extra
here and a little extra there. And it was okay because we came to an agreement. But I
just think that it's important that everybody understands the Mayor's Office and his staff
have worked very hard in the County's best interest all the way through this process.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Okay. And by the way, thank you very much, as I wanna echo
what my colleagues have said about your service to this community, really appreciate it.
The other question is, this deal, the agreement that you have for $13 million with the
Administration, it includes a $3 million road?
MR. GOODFELLOW: Yeah, and what we did is we designed the project to move the road,
which normally would be up along the bypass highway, and we would bring all of the
people in to the lots as a private road to service all of the lots. You know, they would
come in from the top and they would have land that would go right down to across the
street from the ocean and that would be their property, it'd be basically, you know, across
the street from the ocean. Instead, in order to accommodate the park, we put the park in
there and then we relocated the road, as well, along the bottom boundary of this so that,
now, our lots have to go across the road and across the park to get to the ocean; and that
road, then, would service not only our lots, but it would also serve as a park road. The
idea being that ultimately, when the bypass gets put in, that you could actually do away
with the existing highway; and that entire 30-acre piece could be an oceanfront piece
because we would have already built the road on the mauka edge of it. Again, if you go
through condemnation, that road goes away along with, you know, other things that we
agreed to.
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COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Well, yeah, that's my question is, that $3 million value is that
what it would cost us if we wanted to build a road or is that what it's gonna cost you to
build a road?
MR. GOODFELLOW: Well, that's what it would cost us to do the road. I think the County, I
would hope that it would cost about the same, but...
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Okay. And then the water, does it include water meters...
MR. GOODFELLOW: Yes. What we agreed to is a two-inch meter for the agricultural
non-uses and, I think, two--I'll look at Heidi up here--but I think it was, in addition to
that, two potable meters to have the restrooms and other things served by the
infrastructure we've already put in.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: And this is private water system, not the County?
MR. GOODFELLOW: Yeah, private.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: So we would have to purchase the water?
MR. GOODFELLOW: Yeah. I don't know what the rates are, but it's. . .yeah.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Okay. I just... so there's meters and water infrastructure, does
that include the infrastructure?
MR. GOODFELLOW: Yeah. So you understand, we've put in wells, we've put in all the
transmission lines, just as you deal with your Water Director on a regular basis of what it
costs to put in a water system. You know, we've drilled the wells, we've put in the
storage, we have put in all of the transmission lines. And 186 acres is a significant part of
what we serve, because even though the overall purchase was a lot of acres, the usable
acres is less than 1,000 acres. You know, this piece is a very significant piece of our
usable land, you know, it's probably 20 percent of our usable space.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: So you're saying the infrastructure's already there?
MR. GOODFELLOW: Yes, we already put it in.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: So we're purchasing the infrastructure?
MR. GOODFELLOW: You're getting the infrastructure.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Okay.
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MR. GOODFELLOW: The other thing you're getting is the Cane Haul Road. You know, that
Cane Haul Road is often used when, you know, there's problems with the ocean coming
over the existing highway, and that's another pretty significant asset that is a part of this
purchase that is, you know, and in addition to that, this other lawsuit goes away which we
have a valuation of about $2.5 million for that property that's a part of the flood-control
project.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Okay. Thank you. Thank you, Mr. Goodfellow.
MR. GOODFELLOW: Yeah.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Thank you, Chair.
CHAIR WHITE: Members, other comments, questions? Ms. Cochran?
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Yeah, thank you, Chair. And, hi, thank you for being here,
Mr. Goodfellow. You know, a question I brought up in one of our deliberations here in
this Committee, in particular, you know, on the property is the four years that it was not
under this Administration, I guess it was the Tavares Administration. Were there
negotiations and things occurring then or I was just wondering that lapse of four years,
nothing has occurred on your folks behalf to, you know, build up your bottom line or
your stakeholder's and what have you.
MR. GOODFELLOW: Well, what we did is, we had already talked with this Administration in
his previous term. We made the decision to keep working with the State to get the
highway moved. And, as you know, we have funded all of the costs of doing the EA to
move the connection which would have come down through this parcel and would've,
you know, made it more difficult to be able to walk across the street to the ocean if you
had the whole relocated highway down in front of this piece. So, you know, we've spent
probably five or six years or more working with the State, and we'd financed all of the
costs of the EA to move that road mauka. Again, you know, for the benefit of the park as
well as the long-term benefit of those seven lots if we owned them, it'd be a benefit; if
the County owned them, it'd be a benefit, get the highway above the lots so people could
walk right down to the ocean. So that's been a big part of what we did during the
Tavares Administration is, worked on that. We tried to meet with the Mayor on several
occasions. We did meet with her on a couple of occasions. She did not have the
enthusiasm for this that the current Administration has.
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Okay. Thank you. Thank you for that insight,
Mr. Goodfellow. Thank you, Chair.
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CHAIR WHITE: Uh-huh. Ms. Crivello?
COUNCILMEMBER CRIVELLO: Yeah, real simple. Throughout our deliberations it was
mentioned that the end of this year is either purchase or we're off the table. But what I'm
hearing you say that you may wanna consider your own appraisal. Does that mean that
you'll have a very tight window to do that and still maintain the deadlines that we've
heard?
MR. GOODFELLOW: No. I think that depending upon what the Committee does, if this just
lapsed, I mean, you know, they could approve the purchase, I guess they could not
approve the purchase, or it could stay in Committee and die in the Committee. And so if
it dies in the Committee, and it never comes to a full-Council vote, then at that point in
time, December. . .1 mean Christmas is here, so nobody's gonna be appraising anything I
don't think in the near future. But if that happens, we'll go back to the partnership and
we'll talk about what our alternatives are, what the development looks like. And I'm
gonna recommend that we go out and get an independent appraisal ourselves, because it
just seems like we've got so many appraisals floating around, we need to have our own
appraisal. Depending on what that comes in at, and if we believe it, which I hope we can
believe our own appraisal, then we would look at that and say, okay, you know, here's
what we think we could do developing it ourselves, here's what this appraisal is.
Certainly we'll be in discussions with the Mayor. We know that it's a high priority to
him as well as it's to us. I can't say that the price would remain at $13 million, I can't
say it wouldn't be lower, I couldn't say it couldn't be higher. But we would go and we
would certainly look at it and then evaluate all of the different options. I don't know how
long it would take to get a comprehensive appraisal. It seems as if . .the problem that I
see is, is that one of the problems with these appraisals is, so far, the appraisals are all
treating this land like a third party is gonna come in and buy it and develop it. And they
say, if a third party's gonna develop it, he expects to get a 20 percent return on his
investment; and, therefore, we're gonna take 20 percent off of your land value. And
we're saying, wait a minute, we've developed lots up there all the time and we have a
construction company, we already have staff sitting in the office, why would you
discount our land by 20 percent? Because we can go build the lots and sell them
ourselves, okay. So that whole way of evaluating things, when they're taking these large
discounts and saying the raw land's only worth this much because we're gonna make
these discounts, that's an issue, you know. This open, what they call 'open space", it's
only open space because in our last subdivision we made it that way because we wanted
to try to work something out with the County. It's not open, you know, right now, we
can run all those lots right down to the road. That doesn't have to be.. .there's nothing
that says, that has to be whatever it is, you know. So there's a lot of ifs. And then you
get into this whole appraisal process and a little bit that I heard about, you know,
condemnation appraisals, that's a whole nother methodology and a whole nother way of
looking at things. And that's what's happening just, you know, for your information, this
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is what's happening on the eight-acre piece where the flood-control project is. And it's
kind of like I said it, if you go to Keawekapu Beach and you were to go in and you have
somebody that has an $8 million lot and you gotta have 200 feet of, or 100 feet, of open
space. You can't do it. You'll setback, gotta build your house back 100 feet, 200 feet,
okay. So it's undevelopable land, but it's his undevelopable land and he owns it and he
can landscape it and he can take care of it. If you put a County park on that 100 feet and
his land, now, has 100 feet of County park, it's not his land anymore, it's public land, and
you don't even know what the County's gonna do with it, what's that value of that
$8 million lot? Is that lot now 2 million, is it 4 million? He no longer has an oceanfront
piece of property. He now has a piece of property that borders a public park. And that's
the analysis that we'll go into this whole idea of taking this strip is that these people,
currently, have the ability to walk across the street to the ocean. When you take that
ability away and put a public park in front of them, that doesn't just affect that little piece
of land, it affects the value of the entire piece. And so these are the kinds of things that
when you get into a condemnation or an appraisal, it isn't just the land, but it's the
impacts that that is gonna have on all the rest of the land. What's the impact on all the
rest of that land if we no longer have land that you can walk across the street to the
ocean? So when you do those evaluations, it's gonna be...! don't have a clue what the
number's gonna be, but I have a feeling the number's gonna be significantly higher than
any of the numbers that we've been looking at so far. But I'm not an appraiser.
COUNCILMEMBER CRIVELLO: Chair, just one more clarification. So with the
understanding that what the response would be from the partners -MR. GOODFELLOW: Yeah?
COUNCILMEMBER CRIVELLO: --they can still be.. .there may be consideration to still
continue negotiations?
MR. GOODFELLOW: Yes.
COUNCILMEMBER CRIVELLO: Okay. Thank you.
CHAIR WHITE: Members, other questions?
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Yeah.
CHAIR WHITE: Mr. Victorino?
COUNCILMEMBER VICTOR1NO: And, you know, you started me thinking and that's
dangerous, that's very dangerous. 'Cause I'm very much like Don Couch, I start
thinking, I become very dangerous. You mentioned the road development about
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$3 million, you mentioned water; and just doing some quick calculations based on the
spacing and all that, what you'd run, I come up between four and seven hundred thousand
dollars for waterlines and what you'd pay if you had to do it on your own based on my
knowledge of water and it's not much, you know it's not much. What else? You said
road, water and you mentioned couple other things and I couldn't quite pick up. What
else did you agree to do? 'Cause I want the public to hear this, because this is important.
'Cause when I start adding this up, I'm not far off from 13 million; but go ahead and tell
us what else you plan to help us.
MR. GOODFELLOW: Yeah, well, I'm gonna say, the most significant thing -COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Right.
MR. GOODFELLOW: -that we agreed to -COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Yes?
MR. GOODFELLOW: --is to sell all of our coastal land.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Coastal land, okay, got it.
MR. GOODFELLOW: The coastal land is the valuable land -COUNCILMEMBER VICTOR1NO: Okay.
MR. GOODFELLOW: --for anyone that buys those lots. If you have land that goes right down
to the road and could walk across the street to the ocean and that's yours, that's huge
value. When you lose control of that land--and we agreed to draw lines on a piece of
paper that said we're gonna set this aside as a park for the County and it's gonna turn into
public land instead of private land, and it's a huge impact on values--that's probably the
single most, you know, largest concession we did is to design our subdivisions in such a
way to accommodate this park.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Uh-huh.
MR. GOODFELLOW: And it's the most frustrating thing, because when we listen to some of
the dialogue in the Committee, it's like, well, it's open space, therefore, it's worth
nothing. This wasn't open space until we drew a line on a map that made it open space.
This was, you know, agriculturally zoned land that people could build houses on, and
that's what it is. And so by drawing those lines, is probably the greatest concession that
we had agreed to; but we agreed to that on the basis that we'd be fairly compensated for
it. We didn't draw those lines with the understanding, well, because you drew a line and
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it's open space, now it's ours, we can take it for next to nothing, you know, and so that's
a big one. The other one that I did mention is you're getting the Cane Haul Road -COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Right.
MR. GOODFELLOW: --which is a valuable, to me, if I lived in West Maui, would be very
valuable at certain times, because I have a place that I can put the traffic and still get
home.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Right, right. And I absolutely.. . and that could be worth
few more millions just on that aspect -MR. GOODFELLOW: Yeah.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: --if you're talking. And so this is why, Mr. Chair, I've
listened to him very intently, you know, hearing what he's had to say. Doing some quick
math, at the very lowest end of this if we went with the $6.6 million and the
300 million. . .1 mean the 3 million and the four to seven hundred thousand, I'm already
up at ten or eleven million right there. If I take the 9.4-, I've passed it, okay, I've passed
it. And so what I'm trying to get to at this point is, if we go to condemnation, that's all
off the table. And I don't think anybody's gonna do something once they get into
litigation, let's say, you know, leave this be. On top of everything else, Mr. Chair, I truly
believe we've gotten the answers we needed to get from this person. Now, whether they
wanna renegotiate or not, that's another story, that's a gamble we wanna take, that's the
dice we wanna roll. I go to Vegas all the time, let me tell you, the dice is not kind to you,
not kind. No, we all laughing about this, but I, you know, I'm talking the facts.
MR. GOODFELLOW: Yeah.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: You know, so we're looking at this. This is one of those
issues, and you had said it many times, eh Mike, if it came out 10-11 million dollars, I
had no problem with it. When I start throwing back all of this into it, yeah, maybe it's
6.6-, but I'm throwing back other things that this appraisal does not say, the other
appraisal doesn't say; in fact, all the appraisals don't say that. But they're willing to do
it, and I know he's a man of his word; if he says, it's gonna get done, it's gonna get done.

CHAIR WHITE: Uh-huh.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTOR[NO: My feeling is, 13 million is still not an outrageous number.
But if we wanna gamble and play with the dice and roll it and it comes up craps, I don't
wanna be the one sitting in the room trying to explain that to the public. Because, again,
I put the word "priceless", I've never changed my mind, it's still priceless; and I'll go to
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my grave saying, this was a priceless purchase for this County. And I don't wanna repeat
the mistakes we've made in the past. Thank you, Mr. Chair.
CHAIR WHITE: Okay. Mr. Couch?
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Thank you, Mr. Chair. And I swear, Mr. Victorino's reading
my notes.
COUNCILMEMBER BAlSA: And mine.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Everybody reads my notes, okay.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Mr. Goodfellow, since the word "gamble" was put up there, and
I can bet you've been to Las Vegas once or twice -MR. GOODFELLOW: I've had the same luck Mr. Victorino has had.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: --what would you.. .1 mean you take this back to your... if we
were to vote "no" on, if we even get a chance to vote, "no" on the $13 million and you
take this back to your partners, you said, you're gonna ask them to.. .we'd like to
renegotiate, do the gambling odds, what are the odds they're gonna come back and say
not only "no", but "heck no" or "maybe", "maybe not" or "yeah, let's do it"?
MR. GOODFELLOW: I'm not gonna speculate, Don. You know what, I gotta say, it's a
diverse group of people just as you have a diverse group of people here. Any group is
diverse. Every one of the people in this partnership cares about Maui and has a
connection to Maui. And they wouldn't have agreed to do this purchase already, they
wouldn't have agreed to spend the last 12 years working towards getting a park if they
didn't truly want to make this happen. They're extremely frustrated because of the
amount of time that this has sat in this Committee, they're extremely frustrated we've had
to extend the closing date to a third date now and that we've gotten nothing for it, you
know. As a matter of fact, not only have we not gotten anything for it monetarily, but I'll
say that there's all kinds of comments that have come out in the course of these
discussions that I don't think have cast this partnership in the light that they should. I
mean I'll just tell you, this is a good group of people that care about Maui and they
wouldn't have been.. .we wouldn't have made this deal with the Mayor if they didn't care
about Maui and they are frustrated. I'm not about to try to guess what the odds are,
because I think that probably we need more information. You know, I'm an engineer.
Engineers by nature gather more information, so we're gonna do our own appraisal and
we're gonna talk to the appraiser about some of these assumptions that have been made
in these existing appraisals. Personally, I think it's gonna come in more than $13 million.
I think it's gonna come in significantly more, that's my personal opinion, based on, you
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know, what we have on the flood-control appraisal and the methodology and assumptions
that I think are reasonable because we own this land and we can develop those lots and
we can sell 'em and we shouldn't be made to discount $3 million off the purchase price
just because they say, that's the way we do it.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Thank you. And, lastly, you mentioned the flood-control piece
that isn't mentioned in some of these. How much is on the line there, I can't remember
what the dollar amount was that...
MR. GOODFELLOW: And I may not have it exactly, but I believe that our appraisal is right
around $270,000 an acre.
COUINCILMEMBER COUCH: And how many acres is it? I think it's six.
MR. GOODFELLOW: About eight acres?
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Eight?
CHAIR WHITE: Nine point seven.
MR. GOODFELLOW: Nine acres.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Nine point seven.
MR. GOODFELLOW: Nine acres is 270,000 an acre, is that.. .270,000 an acre times 9 acres.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: That's 2.4 million or something like that.
MR. GOODFELLOW: Yeah. And, again, it's based upon the fact that you've lost your
connection. These lots have lost their connection to the water. They now have a
flood-control project sitting in front of them with a fence around it, and they can't get to
the ocean anymore.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Okay. Thank you, Mr. Goodfellow.
MR. GOODFELLOW: Yeah.
CHAIR WHITE: Okay. Members, other comments? Ms. Baisa?
COUNCILMEMBER BAlSA: Second round. Somebody mentioned that we now know more
about appraisals than we ever wanted to know. And I gotta tell you, I have a total new
way of looking at an appraisal. I used to think that it was a document that made sense.
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Now I know that it's a document that has a great deal of subjectivity in it. And it depends
on who's doing it and for what purpose, how you look at it. My grandfather, smart man
that I quote often, used to say that paper takes anything you put on it; and I think this is a
good example of that. You know, months ago when we started looking at this, I was
ready to vote. I'm still ready to vote. I'm kamaaina, my parents have been here and my
grandparents for many, many, many years, and I treasure that land, I treasure it very, very
much. And when I listened to Mr. Victorino's math, and he did a really good job, I don't
feel bad about the disparity between what this appraisal says and what we think it's
worth. What would make me really feel bad is if somehow this goes awry and we don't
buy it, that would make me really feel bad. So I'm willing to listen to, you know, where
we're going from here and wherever the, you know, people talk about going to Vegas,
I'm not a Vegas person. I'm Portuguese, I cannot throw away my money. I can't stand
the thought of rolling a dice and losing thousands of dollars, it just doesn't compute for
me. I'll go to a show, but I don't gamble. But in this case, I don't like the odds in this
gamble. Somebody's gonna come along with the right amount of money and put it down,
and somebody might pick it up and it won't be us and the people of Maui County lose.
So it's been hell, it's really been hell. Because, you know, every time another alleged
fact is put in front of us, it confuses us more. And the war between the Portuguese side
which says, save money, and the kamaaina side that says, save the land, just is at war.
But I really want us to have this land. And I wanna thank you again for your patience. I
know it hasn't been easy for you any more than it's been for us. And I know the Chair
has tried very, very hard to be fiscally responsible; but there's that once in a while, you
just gotta take a chance, and that's kinda where I'm at. Thank you, Chair.
CHAIR WHITE: Thank you. Any further comments?
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Not for him, but when you're ready.
CHAIR WHITE: Mr. Carroll?
COTJNCILMEMBER CARROLL: Since you said, comments, 'cause I have nothing...
CHAIR WHITE: Can we let -MR. GOODFELLOW: Okay, yeah.
CHAIR WHITE: --let Mr. Goodfellow sit down?
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Yeah.
MR. GOODFELLOW: Okay. Thank you, all.
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COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Thank you, Mr. Goodfellow.
COUNCILMEMBER CARROLL: He's been standing up here long enough, so.. .actually, I'm
just going to repeat myself from what I said the other time. We have much information
thanks to the Chair and the Council Chair. We have new information as given to us
today. We've had a very long discussion. I think everybody has more understanding,
now, how the figures before us are derived. But it comes down to this, and which I said
last time, there comes a point where we need to take the information that we have at this
point in time and we need to make a decision. Council meeting on Friday, County
Communications 13-374 and 13-375 are for the purchase of this property at $13 million.
Whether you're for this or not, whether you support it or not, this needs to come to the
floor. The Members have the information and it's the same Members that are Members
of this Committee, and they need, everyone needs to have the opportunity with the
information they have to say, yea or nay. I appreciate the information that we have. I
will be going over it before Friday. I have not made my final decision yet; I never do
until it's time to vote, I always keep it open. But we really need to do this. And I hope
the Chair and the Members, when Friday when we're bringing this up, that we will put it
on the floor and we will have a vote; and I think that vote will help to clarify this Council,
this Committee's position and this Council's position. Thank you, Chair.
CHAIR WHITE: Thank you, Mr. Carroll. Ms. Crivello?
COUNCILMEMBER CRIVELLO: Thank you, Chair. I don't believe in eminent domain and
condemnation. I wanna just throw that out, Mr. Chair. I can see if we had an unwilling
landowner and the landowner was holding everything back and we had no choice but to
try and procure the land and to the best use that we, as government, would want. The
different here is that we have a willing landowner, in my opinion, and it's not fair for us.
You know, condemnation happens to the little landowner, which is sometimes, most
times, very painful. But here you have a landowner of a large piece of acreage and
they're willing to. . .and they've been willing and have been sitting down for over
12 months. And so here we come with the suggestion of condemnation, which I think is
not a fair process. We had an opportunity to look through or speed read the appraisals
that was set before us today. So we have three different numbers, and so which one do
we raise that is best? Again, I go back to the landowner. What is it that they're willing to
deal with us and actually make the deal? And we're not the negotiators. And I can truly
appreciate your fiduciary diligence, your due diligence and everything that you set before
us, I thank you for all that. But, again, as my colleague Mr. Victorino mentioned, you
know, there are all the infrastructures, which really is the cost that we end up paying as
landowners. And he did his addition and I gonna respect his own kind of due diligence
and take it from him. But when you add all that up, even to the minimal appraisal of
$6 million, it can add up to quite a bit. So just off on the table and, you know, I'm not
like Mr. Carroll and say, won't let you know how we're gonna vote, I don't support
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condemnation of lands. I think it's unfair for any landowner, for a government to come
in, unless it's for emergency, health and welfare of the people. But, again, we have to
keep in mind, we have a willing landowner; and eminent domain comes to me, in my
opinion, when you don't have a willing landowner. So those are the considerations we
need to take. So whatever the Committee decides, whether we're gonna vote today or
continue this conversation in Committee, I will go along, but I think it's the negotiators
that will have to decide how much longer they're gonna wait. And, like you and like
everyone else here, we all value the open space that is not for us today, but for
generations to follow.
CHAIR WHITE: Thank you. And you've been very consistent with your comments and
feelings. Mr. Carroll?
COUNCILMEMBER CARROLL: Just so that I shock everybody by speaking twice. No, I just
wanted to say that, also, I cannot support condemnation, the consideration, at this time.
Thank you.
CHAIR WHITE: Uh-huh. Mr. Couch?
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Thank you, Mr. Chair. We've heard a lot today. One of the
things that we heard was, "we need to consider" a couple times: we need to consider this,
we need to consider that. You said that yourself. You've given us a lot of information, a
ton of information, which is. . .that's why we have you there, 'cause you're the
information guy. We're at a point where all the appraisal stuff is good background
information, but it's a moot point on what we're supposed to do. We are not negotiators,
as I believe as Ms. Crivello said, we're not the negotiators. We need to be able to
consider whether we vote "yes" or "no" on the $13 million, that's our decision. Now
you, you know, we heard, "we don't wanna repeat the same mistakes"; I agree with that,
we don't wanna repeat the same mistakes. We have Olowalu we could've bought for
almost $13 million, all of Olowalu, and we'd have a really nice place. Palauea, I think it
was around $13 million or something like that; now it's -CHAIR WHITE: I don't know.
COUINCILMEMBER COUCH: --now there's houses all over there and there's only two lots
that people are complaining about because all the people that used to go to that big, long
beach now have to be funneled through these two lots, and so we get complaints from the
owners of the lots. Are we willing to gamble our future away? We talked about
gambling, that was thrown around. We don't know if they're gonna come back at all and
say, yes. I know couple of the.. .I've heard of, you know, I've met a couple of the
partners a long time ago, and I know how they are. If they get to a point where they say,
"forget it County, we gave you a chance", I can see them saying, "too bad, we'll give it to
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our kids". Then we have the $3 million road that isn't even considered in here, as
Mr. Victorino said; we have the flood-control project that I know Mr. Goodfellow said,
two-point-something million dollars, but I think in part of the agreement somewhere is
$800,000 is going to go away if we were to acquire that land because that's part of the
flood...
CHAIR WHITE: Nine hundred and seventy, I believe.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Eight hundred and what?
CHAIR WHITE: Nine hundred and seventy.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Nine hundred seventy, okay, thank you. So you gotta add that
to the.. .even if you go to the 6.6-, I mean we'll be very generous, we'll go to the 6.6-;
3 million, that's 9.6-; 970-, that's 10.5- not including the discount that they're saying if
you're gonna give it to a disinterested third party, they're not a disinterested third party,
they can do the 20 percent development cost that they're taking off of there; and the
water, you know. I'm not gonna throw in the Cane Haul Road because it's there whether
we condemn it, whether whoever, the Cane Haul Road is there, it's part of the deal,
although it's a nice part of the deal. As Mr. Victorino said, we're close to the
$13 million, so I guess I'm imploring everybody to take a look at the fact that we're here
to vote "yes" or "no" on $13 million. If you don't like the $13 million price with all the
information that we got here that was provided for us--at some cost by the way--then vote
"no". But if you say, it's worth it, I don't wanna gamble on the future, I want to be able
to say and hear my great grandkids--you guys have great grandkids, I don't--say, what a
good deal, those guys were thinking when they moved the road, now we have this really
nice, open parkway, they were geniuses. As opposed to, who's the clowns that sold more
of the land so we have to go through people's property to get to the beach? Or I don't
know. There's gonna be houses, 15 houses in 2'/2 miles. Yeah, that's not a lot, but if
they're big 10,000-square-foot houses, we're losing open space. And still, yeah, it's open
space, but we can't go through it. There's gonna be fences there, there's gonna be
boundaries that if we were trying to go from the highway to the ocean through that lot,
you bet we're gonna get, whoever's sitting in these chairs ten years from now, you're
gonna get complaints saying, hey, these guys are going through my land. So I'm asking
that we be allowed to vote. You know, and as you said, Ms. Crivello's position has been
consistent, and mine has, too. I just wanna be able to.. .a chance to vote on this piece of
property. You did a great job in getting us the information we need. With this
information, I'm still confident that $13 million is a good price. And just to be on the
record, in case you're using that somehow, I don't know why, but I certainly don't
support condemnation unless it's a very last resort, and this wouldn't be a last resort.
'Cause, as Ms. Crivello says, we do have willing people willing to participate in this, this
isn't an adversarial position where somebody's just being greedy and holding on. It's
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something that they're willing to work with us on and we've been willing to work with
them, and we're not negotiators, we're "yes" or "no" on $13 million, that's the initial and
the only question that has been before us all this time. Thank you.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Mr. Chair?
CHAIR WHITE: Mr. Victorino?
COIJNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Okay. So we getting to the end. You know, I know he
said he doesn't wanna say anything 'cause his throat is sore; but being Portuguese, I'm
never sore. I no care how bad the cold is.
CHAIR WHITE Never sore enough.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Yeah, never sore enough. No, and I think every one of my
colleagues bring up good points. What I would like to say is, I agree. And what
frustrates me, as you well know, myself and Mr. Hokama will be in Cedar Rapids, Iowa
on Friday. Now I'm really looking forward to that, let me be honest with you guys; but
it's a commitment I made months ago, it's a commitment I made to this Council that as
the NACo representative, I'm on the Board of Directors and that's the meeting and that's
where it's at, so I gotta go. It frustrates me to know that I won't have a say on Friday, I
cannot vote on Friday. Life is that way, you know, it's not fair, but life has never been
fair. I'm hoping that if you not gonna allow us to vote today, and you kinda indicated
that, but I was hoping you might change your mind just maybe...
CHAIR WHITE: No, but just to be clear, the only things on today's agenda are the
condemnations and the...
COUNCILMEMBER VICTOR1NO: Okay. Alright, so we can't vote on it, so no matter what
we do. Anyhow, but on Friday, I hope my colleagues that will be here, number one, will
allow it to come out and be heard, to be discussed. I hope that's the first thing that
happens, okay, because we've talked about it and now's the chance. Secondly, I hope we
get a chance to vote, up or down, so these people are not sitting around waiting to see
what we wanna do. Let's make it perfectly clear to them, we want it or we don't want it,
at this point, for 13 million. Now, if they go back and they wanna sit down and go
renegotiate with the Mayor and the Mayor wants to renegotiate with you and
Mr. Agsalog and the rest of you guys, I think it's great, you know. If they don't, then we
come up loser. Whether it's Olowalu, Palauea, One Main Plaza, you wanna go through
all the names, we can go through the rest of the day, get with all these different places,
times. Some of us, we weren't around; some of us were really young and running around
the soccer fields and, you know, creating havoc and now they're attorneys creating
havoc. You know, but all joking aside, this is the time to make a decision to be fair to
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them. They've been fair to us, waited a year plus. Let's be fair to them. So I hope that
my Members that are here on Friday will at least let it come out to vote, and then let's see
where the vote goes.
CHAIR WHITE: Uh-huh.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: I won't be here, neither will Mr. Hokama. And I know
both of us would want to be here, we'd want to be here. But commitments are
commitments, you just don't turn around and just change and say, oh, we're not gonna
come now, 'cause that's not fair to those people up there who have been waiting to have
this meeting. Even though I know there's like three inches of snow and all that, I'm
really getting excited about leaving this town. But all said and done, I thank
Mr. Goodfellow and the sellers for clearing the picture, you know, 10 million, 13 million,
when I add all these numbers up, they're not far apart, now, even with the reappraisals.
'Cause knowing the water, knowing the... and not, you know, I disagree with
Mr. Couch--you know, it's not unusual that we disagree--but that Cane Haul Road is an
integral part of the emergency services for West Maui. Fires, accidents, even flooding at
times that road becomes accessible where the main road is not, where the highway is not.
So I disagree that it's not a big deal, 'cause it is a big deal. 'Cause you and I have been
stuck out there for a day or two and not able to come home because the road was shut
down.
CHAIR WHITE: Right.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: And that has happened many times; and lately--knock on
wood--nothing much, but nothing's happened, but it can any day, close down that
highway. And you've come back via Kahakuloa, that ain't a good trip, that's not a good
trip. So, Mr. Chair, I hope, Friday, my colleagues will look favorably, at least, on
bringing it out and voting on it. I thank Mr. Carroll and I wish and pray that somehow
we come to some resolution on it, up or down, fine. 'Cause I don't think they should
gamble any more of their time, you know, we should be fair to them cause they've
waited a year plus, let's be fair. And then the Mayor knows, too, what he needs to do.
He has to go back and renegotiate. Mr. Agsalog and Mr. Bar, you need to go back and
renegotiate if.. .that's what we said. They're willing to do it, fine. But if they walk away
from the table, I too will tell you, I'm not exactly in favor of condemnation for this
purpose.
CHAIR WHITE: Lfh-huh.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTOR1NO: If the welfare and safety, if you're talking people's ability
to survive a major disaster, that's a whole different gamut of priorities, in my mind. But
this is something that is priceless. I use that word, I will repeat that word till the day I
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die, this is a priceless opportunity that may never come back again. And you've done
great work, thank you for what you've done. I'm not, you know, without this, we
wouldn't have all this long discussion. Shucks, I thought about that one. Anyhow, thank
you, Mr. Chair. And I hope my colleagues will favorably look at least on voting to
discuss this and at least voting on whether to go forward or not, and that's fine. I'd be
very thankful for that. Thank you, Mr. Chair.
CHAIR WHITE: Thank you. Any other comments, Members? Let me just make a few final
observations. I agree that the road is a big asset in this purchase, but we need to balance
the fact that the road has to be built one way or the other, whether it's up along the
highway or whether it's at the bottom of the parcels on the portion that we're purchasing.
So, to me, the road is an asset that needs to be calculated into it, but the cost of the road is
gonna be there for them whether it's on the parcel that we purchase or the parcel that's
above them. As far as extending the lot lines down to the ocean, and there again, you
know, these appraisers may be right or wrong, but their comment was that the value of
lot, because you're only increasing it by two or three acres, the value between, say, a
15-acre parcel and a 18-acre parcel is not that much of a difference. And as Ms. Bigelow
testified a number of weeks ago, having the open space at the bottom of the
11 developable lots provides an added value of about $410,000 per lot for a total of
4 ',"2 million. So the Chair's simply looking at these things and saying, yeah, there can be
a give and take here. Because if we're, you know, my concern is if we buy this and as
Mr. Goodfellow said, we bought Ukumehame and what have we done with it? It's a
forest. And when the highway goes above, you've either gotta mow that forest down or
we lose the kind of, you know, visual highway that we now have. So I would like to have
the resources to make sure that the area down below is really buffed out so that it's not a
detriment to the owners. It's something they can be proud of instead of it, like the
Ukumehame area, get turned into a forest. So there's a lot to, you know, lot to consider
here. I really appreciate Mr. Goodfellow sharing his feelings and perspectives with us.
Some of them are very, very important for us to hear. And, you know, as Chair, I
probably should have spent more time with Mr. Goodfellow and others. But, as
Mr. Couch has said, we're not the negotiators, and I didn't wanna be putting myself into
a position where I appear to be out there trying to craft a different deal. So, anyway, I
appreciate all the comments today, I appreciate the perspectives that each one of you
have brought to this and we'll see where we go from here. But I do wanna just remind all
of you that this is a significant amount of money that we're spending and there are values
that our doing this right will bring to their properties. And maybe we should just be
purchasing the lower parcels and let them develop the seven developable lots, that's
another option. Anyway, with that, I think we've probably heard enough from each
other. And I wanna thank you all for being here today, and thank you for your
perspectives and comments. And, with that, we'll adjourn. . . . (gavel).
ACTION: DEFER pending further discussion.
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